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This year, Parker achieved a major milestone by surpassing

$10 billion in revenues

for the first time in our history. What comes next promises

10 be even more exciting, as we partner with our customers
around the world to increase their profitability. Because when
our customers succeed, we succeed.
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 2006 2005
{in thousands, except per share data)

OPERATING DATA

Net sales $ 10,718,058 $ 9,385,888 $ 8,068,805
Gross profit 2,445,110 2,018,270 1,677,328
Netincome 830,046 673,167 604,692
Net cash provided by operating activities 955,007 954,639 853,506
Net cash (used in) investing activities (579,761) (921,243) (565,383)
Net cash (used in) financing activities (378,529} (194,192) (137,538)
PER SHARE DATA

Diluted earnings per share $ 7.01 $ 5.57 $ 5.02
Dividends 1.04 92 .78
Book value 40.71 3546 28.14
RATIOS

Return on sales 7.7% 7.2% 7.5%
Return on average assets 10.0 9.0 9.3
Return on average equity 18.5 17.8 18.1
Debt to debt-equity 21.4 21.1 22.5
OTHER

Number of employees 57,338 57,073 50,019




| Letter to Shareholders

By remaining focused on The Parker Win
Strategy goals of premier customer service,
financial performance and profitable growth,
Parker employees around the world again
delivered record results to shareholders,
surpassing the $10 billion revenue milestone
in the process.

Parker delivered record results in fiscal year 2007 by continuing
to do what we do best: partnering with customers to drive their
productivity and profitability. We are committed to our belief

that when our customers and distributors are successful, we will

be too. We've summed up what Parker stands for with a bold

new tagline: Engineering Your Success. It appears on the cover

of this year’s annual report and will soon appear in all of our

communication materials. Simply put, Engineering Your Success

is our promise to customers around the world.

To ensure that we remain the kind of enterprise capable of deliv-

ering on this promise, we're using a proven tool: The Parker Win

Strategy. Launched in 2001, The Parker Win Strategy provides

the blueprint through which employees are engineering success

in every aspect of our organization.

Record Levels of Success
Fiscal year 2007 was a year of outstanding achievements:

Sales reached $10.7 billion, an increase of 14.2 percent

over fiscal year 2006. Of the total growth amount, 5 percent
was organic, 6 percent was from strategic acquisitions, and the
remainder was from foreign currency exchange rates.

Income from continuing operations increased 30 percent to a
record $830.0 million compared with $638.3 million a year ago.

Before including the recent three-shares-for-two stock split,
diluted earnings per share from continuing operations were
$7.01 compared to $5.28 a year ago.

Net income as a percent of net sales reached an all-time
record 7.7 percent.

Cash flow from operations reached a record $955.0 million
or 8.9 percent of sales.

Parker’s annual dividend increased for the 51st consecutive
year, one of the top five longest records of dividend increases
among the Standard & Poor’s 500.

Since the end of the fiscal year, we increased our quarterly
dividend paid to shareholders by more than 21 percent,
bringing our total quarterly dividend increase to more than
65 percent over the last three years.

Don Washkewicz, Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President

= Return on invested capital of 21.9 percent placed Parker
among the top quartile of our peers.

» Parker’s stock price exceeded $100.00 a share on a pre-stock-
split basis.

+ The company also expanded and accelerated its share
repurchases.

Profitable Global Growth

Each year, Parker aims to grow revenues by at least ten percent.
We achieved that goal again this year through a balanced

mix of organic growth and growth through acquisitions.

Winovation, our program for developing innovative new prod-

ucts that customers want, continued to deliver breakthroughs:

» Data-carrying smart seals in sections of oil rig drilling rods
help sense the likelihood of finding oil or gas at any given site
faster. Initial market potential: $20 million.

+ Self cleaning, regenerative filtration systems that neutralize
biological, nuclear and chemical contaminants. Initial
market potential: $40 million.

» Microfluidic process controilers that control instruments
in applications ranging from airport security to disease
detection. Initial market potential: $50 million.



The company also continued to invest wisely in

acquisitions that fit its motion and control technology

portfolio,

* Acofab in France, Rayco Technologies in Singapore and

Tecknit in the U.S. dramatically strengthened our global

sealing and shielding platform.

¢ Cabett Subsea in the U.S and Rectus in Germany

brought new technology and expanded distribution to

our fluid and gas handling offering.

¢ Impertant product and regional niches were filled in

climate control, filiration and hydraulics.

In addition, results from the acquisitions made a year ago

continue to improve as integration activities are completed.

Taken together, our efforts have reshaped the company.

Parker’s revenues and profits are now more balanced

geographically, as the accompanying chart illustrates. This

makes the company’s overall performance less susceptible to

regional economic downturns when they occur. At the same

time, we've kept our roughly 50/50 strategic mix between

OEM and MRO business. We continue to apply Parker

technologies in dozens of diverse markets.

FY 2001
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Delivering Customer Success
As the leader in the motion and control industry, Parker

strives to be our customers’ trusted partner. These reiation-

ships are cultivated by listening closely to our customers and
repeatedly providing them with value measured in real dol-
lars: saved time, reduced waste, gained efficiency, expanded

output, and increased profitability.

Customer trust is earned first by delivering quality products

on-time. Parker's performance level is among the best in class

and allows us to win business when competitors fall short.

Disciplined Strategic Acquisitions

A-FILTER ARLON, Filtration, Sweden

ACAL AIR CONDITIONING & REFRIGERATION, Climate Control, UK
ACOFAB SAS, Sealing & Shielding, France

AIRTEK, Filtration, US

CABETT SUBSEA, Fluid & Gas Handling, US

SERVICIOS METALCROM LIMITADA, Hydraulics, Chile
POWER COMPONENTS of MIDWEST INC., Hydraulics, US
RAYCO TECHNOLOGIES, Sealing & Shielding, Singapore
RECTUS AG, Fluid & Gas Handling, Germany

SSD DRIVES INDIA, Electromechanical, India

TECKNIT, Sealing & Shie!ding, US

No single company offers a more comprehensive family of
motion and control products than Parker. Increasingly, custom-
ers are asking Parker to help engineer their success by combining
our products into complete systems. In China, for example,

our technologies are driving one of the largest marine dredge
systems ever constructed there. In the U.S., our climate control
expertise is providing subsystems for geothermal heating and
cooling units. Other examples include emission-reducing fan
drive systems for construction vehicles; flight, hydraulic, and
fuel control systems for nearly every plane flying today; and a full
suite of life science solutions for anesthesia delivery, drug discov-
ery, minimally invasive surgery and biomedical waste disposal.

Parker’s ultimate competitive advantage in serving customers
has been built over more than sixty years: our global network of
12,000 distribution outlets that can provide our products nearly
anytime, anywhere. Our relationships with distributors have
never been stronger. Parker continues to give them the products,
services and training they need to grow their businesses and
ours. One of our fastest growing innovations, the ParkerStore,
provides distributors with a tool to reach the walk-in MRO

or “industrial retail”
marketplace untapped
by competitors.

In sum, we follow our customers around the world and do what
it takes to engineer their success. Centralized country sales
offices, market-specific sales teams, on-site service centers,
online tools and inventory management programs are among
the many tools at our customers’ disposal. We believe that no
company in our industry is better than Parker at providing
customers with local engineering, local products and local service.

Building Greater Performance

The Win Strategy’s initiatives drive excellence on the
fundamentals of purchasing, manufacturing and pricing. While
Parker has already realized tremendous benefits from each of
these initiatives, it is clear that there is still much to be gained.



Parker’s strategic procurement initiative continues to deliver
millions of dollars in savings. We partnier with key suppliers,
rewarding them with larger orders and long term business in
exchange for continuous supply chain improvements. These
agreements help us plan for and mitigate swings in the costs of
raw materials.

Lean Enterprise is the way we operate our company around

the world. Tools such as standard werk, value stream mapping,
visual controls and error proofing are used to meet objective,
measurable goals. As these tools are applied, inventory levels
and capital expenditures go down while productivity, quality and
return on net assets improve. We continue to see especially
dramatic results as we introduce lean to recently acquired compa-
nies. Lean is also taking hold in the office as areas such as finance,
legal, and marketing reduce waste and improve productivity.

In terms of pricing, Parker has become adept at capturing the
full value we provide our customers. Our ability to do just that
was profiled in a front page Wall Street Journal article earlier
this year.

These efforts are yielding results. Most telling is Parker's margin
improvement outside of North America. A dollar of sales inter-
nationally today yields nearly the same level of profit as the rest
of our industrial business. Regional downturns should no longer
affect Parker as dramatically as they once did.

Empowered Employees Drive Success

At Parker, we trust that the people closest to the work know best
how to improve their processes. The company’s decentralized
structure allows employees to be entrepreneurial, reacting as
they see fit to sudden or emerging opportunities to grow

the business.

We continue to develop a diversified group of leaders at all levels
of the organization. Perhaps the best example of our bench
strength: the seamless management transition following the
retirement of President and Chief Operating Officer Nick Vande
Steeg. Proven leaders Lee Banks, Bob Barker and Tom Williams
were each named Senior Vice President and Operating Officer

to build on what'’s already been done and to lead Parker into

the future.

More Success to Come

Fiscal year 2007 was a great year at Parker. Our stock price
reached record levels. Total shareholder return has outpaced
the S&P 500 and S&P Industrial indices over three, five and
ten years. Yet, employees throughout the organization insist
“the best is yet to come.” [ know they are right,

Parker’s future goals include:

* Continued #1 position in the global motion and
control market

+ Compound revenue growth rate of greater than 10 percent

+ Top quartile return on invested capital among our peer group
* Market share of 20 percent

» Continued dividend growth

» Technology leadership and a continuous flow of innovative
new products

What may be most exciting is that our target market potential
has greatly expanded. This year we completely reassessed our
market opportunities to account for the effects of recent
acquisitions and internal technology developments. Our true
opportunity is now more than double previous assessments.

We feel it will be hard for our competitors to match the
continued success of Parker because of our technologies, our
diversification, our structure and our people. The need for Parker
products and technologies continues to grow. Wherever the stan-
dard of living is increasing, Parker is there to satisfy basic needs
in the areas of energy, food and water, healthcare, infrastructure
and the environment. With each succeeding year, we are proving
that our success is predictable and repeatable. Management
incentives are aligned to maximize shareholder value. The future
is bright. On behalf of our employees, | thank you, our share-
holders, for giving us the opportunity to engineer your success.

Sincerely,

Donald E. Washkewicz
Chairman, CEO and President
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A The Win Strategy gives clarity to our people and operations around the
waorld. Qur vision of being the #1 motion and control company rests on the
strategy’s pillars of premier customer service, financial performance and
profitable growth,

Empowered Employees |
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Customer Success

Premier customer service always comes first at Parker. We
collaborate with our customers to engineer solutions that
improve their profitability and reduce complexity. We look
at their entire operation to integrate systems that add long-
term value.

Parker’s global presence supports on-time delivery and
on-site services that speed customers’ operations, We pro-
vide audits that target specific operating costs and advise

customers of ways to reduce their spend. We help to improve

customers’ performance by listening to the challenges they

face and knowing the markets they serve. Qur market-focused

sales forces provide relevant expertise to customers.

Custom products are typical, subsystems are practical,
and engineered systems celebrated. We are in the business
of accommodating our customers. If our standard offering
doesn't meet the needs of a particular application, our
engineers work side by side with the customer until the
problem is solved. Parker provides motion and control
technologies and systems, bringing together all of our
specialized operations.




Flight Controls for Light Jets
Subsystem contracts are increasingly
awarded to Parker based on our
reputatien for quality.

E i - N
Protecting Patients’ Health
Parker and French custormer Anios filter
water used for surgical hand washing
and showering of immune-compro-
mised patients to minimize risk of
hospital acquired illnesses.

' O Refrigerated Large Capacity Dryers

Custom large capacity dryers for compressed air are tested and approved
by China Steel Corporation at Parker's Domnick Hunter Hiross facility in

S. Angelo di Piove, ltaly.

Demanding Performance
Herrenknecht, of Germany, relies on
Parker to plumb its utility tunneling and
geothermal exploration equipment.

Significant Energy Savings

Aluminum manufacturers in Dubai
and Russia reduce operating costs by
using less compressed air with Parker
cylinders.
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ParkerStare Retail Locations

Our distributor-owned ParkerStores serve
the vast, global MRO market. Thousands of
products are available in The Parker Book,
an MRO specific catalog.

Optimizing Wind Power

In Denmark, leading wind turbine
companies use Parker hydraulics
exclusively.

Local Customer Service

An acquired Chitean manufacturer
increased Parker's market share in the
reqgion’s mining industry.

Safe Alternate Energy

Nuclear energy is re-emerging with
milliens of dollars of Parker product:
supporting safe operation.
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Parker continues to expand its global footprint through
strategic acquisitions and organic growth. We've achieved a
geographic sales balance unparalleled in the company’s
history. We've organized our operations to achieve compa-
rable margins anywhere in the world. Parker’s global reach
enables us to serve global OEMs with local manufacturing and
around-the-clock customer service.

Our loyal, 12,000-location strong, distribution network gives
customers personalized access to Parker’s capabilities

worldwide. Customers are able to take advantage of on-site
service and engineering expertise, as well as inventory
management prograns.

By establishing operations close to our customers, we're
enjoying growth in every region of the world. Ongoing
improvements in the standard of living worldwide mean the
demand for our technologies should steadily increase. We add
new talent and capabilities with each company that joins us in
our quest to remain the global leader in motion and control.
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Flexible Drives Smart Syringes Public Safety Intelligent Pumps

This AC adjustable speed drive features | Our fluidic dispensing systems enable Contaminants are eliminated from In aerospace applications, our pumps
a modular design, easing instaltation and | precise liquid metering for the drug municipal water systems with the help adjust flow and pressure in response
maintenance. discovery and life science markets. of Parker's instant monitoring systems, system demand fer gptimum efficienc




At Parker, we employ our motion and control technologies
to improve the quality of life for people everywhere.

We team with our customers to find new ways to develop
infrastructure, save energy, reduce pollution, improve
safety, and promote health.

Our intelligent systems communicate with operators,
providing information to support reliable performance. Qur
integration of electronics allows us to create smart products
and systems that sense, diagnose and respond autoratically,
eliminating human error. We integrate functions that help to
reduce our customers’ down-time and improve their productivity.

Parker’s systematic approach to innovation, cailed
Winovation, gives our engineers the framework to develop
solutions customers want. Winovation promotes the
development of breakthrough products and ensures their
ultimate success. We strive to deliver technology our
customers need instead of just filling out product lines.

Our access to world markets and available cash makes us an
attractive partner for emerging technology companies. We
develop partnerships with start-up companies to benefit our
customers with progressive technology.
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Operational Success

provide in our products. We continue to leverage

strategic contracts to maintain a healthy supply chain.
Still, we have much more to accomplish by executing each
initiative in the Win Strategy.

Qur Win Strategy focuses on customer service, financial
performance and profitable growth, and provides consistency
throughout Parker’s decentralized organization. Our 57,000
employees have achieved productivity gains, improved
on-time delivery, and decreased inventory levels.

We've optimized our manufacturing globally, with fewer
plants and higher utilization. Qur efforts have put Parker’s
international operating margins nearly on par with those in
North America. We've educated many of our suppliers, dis-
tributors and customers on the advantages of lean operations
as well. Our pricing model now captures all of the value we

Parker has recently implemented programs to support
innovative products on both ends of our Winovation
process: Winmap, our marketing-focused program; and
Winvalue, our sales-based program. These new processes
will work well to complement the Win Strategy initiatives,
leveraging the strength of Parker with well thought-out plans
for the application of our technology.



Qur strategically located sales companies pull Parker systems together for
customers, bringing our glebal capabilities to local markets with local people.

Lean Enterprise Procurement Improvements Immediate Respanse Phastite Fitting

Our manufacturing operations are in- Parker worked with a supplier to In the aerial lift market, we deliver This virtually indestructible fitting
creasingly productive, and we're using | reduce the weight of this pump by products direct to the assembly line emerged from our Winovation process,
tean methodologies to streamline our 30 percent with a redesign of its and enjoy sole source agreements with | which guides strategic product
functional business processes. iron castings. leading global providers. development.
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Total shareholder return assumes stock price apprecition and reinvestment
of dividends. In FY2007, Parker total shoreholder retym was 28 percent, o

Financial Success

QOur Return on Net Assets Goal

% of Return en Sales

Het Assets/Sales

Continued Above-the-Ling Performance in 2007 - Return on Net Assefs is
a common meiric throughout the company, providing o standard for how

35 percent higher than the S&P 500. efficiently and productively each operating unit employs the average dollar
invested in assets. To reach Parker's internally estoblished benchmark, the
RONA Goal line, operations must suceesshully balonce investments in assefs
with profitable sales growth, Since the lounch of the Win Strategy, Parker
has steadily moved toward the goal, reaching the fine in 2005 and eclipsing

itin 2006 and 2007.

Over the lost six years, Parker's Win Strategy has driven the company’s financial performance to a higher level. As
our employees confinue to execute our Win Strategy, we will continue fo operate from a position of financial strength,
enabling us to invest in strategic new opportunities, grow our business, and provide strong returns fo our shareholders.

. * ]
Parker Return on Invested Capital Versus Peers Peers Parker
b - : L 136.0%
,I . . ‘ 134.5%
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* ' 1 18.9%
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1% Strang ROIC Performance in 2007 - Qur ROIC

. : 1 169% confinves o outpoce our weighted average cost

: : : 1 16.9% of copital, creating value for aur shareholders.

x LT 16.3%

F13%
. 1129%
- . . CI20%

! : 11.4%
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Return on invested Capital %

*Return on Invested Capital = [Pretax income from Continuing Operations + Interest Expense] / [Average Deht + Average Equity]. Parker's ROIC peers include
{identified by stack symbol] CAT, CBE, (M, DE, DHR, DOV, EMR, ETN, FLS, GR, HON, IR, ITT, ITW, PLL, ROK, SPW, and TXT. Peer data is from most recent 10-K filings.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview

The Company is o leading worldwide diversified manufacturer of mation control
products and systems, providing precision engineered selutions for o wide variety
of commercial, mobile, industrial and aerospace morkets.

The Company’s order rates provide o nearterm perspective of the Company’s outlook
' particularly when viewed in the context of prior and future order rates. The Compony
| has historically published its order rates on o monthly hasis. However, beginning in

- fiscal 2008, the Compony will publish order rates on a quarterly basis in order to

- more effectively characterize the longer term trends of the Company’s markets. The
lead time between the time an order is received and revenue is realized can range
from one day to 12 weeks for commercial, mobile and industriol orders and from one
day fo 18 months for aerospace orders. The Company beligves the leading economic
indicators of these markets that have o strong correlation to the Company’s future
order rates are os follows:

« Institute of Supply Management {ISM) index of manufacturing activity with
respect to North Americon commercial, mabile ond industrial merkets,

« Purchasing Managers Index (PMI) on manufacturing activity with respect to
most International commerciol, mobile and industriol markets, end

« Aircraft mites flown and revenue passenger miles for commerciol oerospace
markets and Department of Defense spending for military aeraspace markets.

An ISM and PMI index above 50 indicates that the manufacturing economy is
expanding resulting in the expectation that the Company’s order rates in the
commercial, mobile and industrial markets should be positive year-over-year.

PARKER HANNIFIN CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2007

The ISM index ot the end of fiscal 2007 was 56.0 ond the most recent PMI for

the Ewrozone countries was 54.1. With respect to the oerospoce market, aircraft miles
flown ond revenue passenger miles in 2007 have shown moderate improvement over
comparable fiscal 2006 levels ond the Company expects continued improvement in
fiscol 2008. The Company anticipates that Department of Defense spending in fiscal
2008 will be about 2 percent higher than the fiscal 2007 level.

The Company also believes that there is a high correlation between interest rates

and Industrio! menufacturing activity. The Federal Reserve did not chonge the federol
funds rate during fiscal 2007 but did raise the federal funds rate eight times during
fiseol 2006. Increnses in the federo! funds rafe typically hove o negotive impoct on
industrial production thersby lowering future order rates while decreases in the federol
funds rote typically have the opposite effect.

The Company’s mojor opportunities for growth ore os follows:

+ Leverage the Company’s brood product line with customers desiring to
consolidate their vendor bose and outseurce system engineering,

* Marketing systems solutions for customer opplications,
= Expand the Compony's business presence outside of North America,

« New product introductions, including those resulting from the Company’s
innovation initiatives,

» Completing strategic acquisitions in o consofidating motion and control
industry, and

+ Expanding the Company’s vost distribution netwark,

A4



/ IANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS N o

The financial condition of the Company remains strong as evidenced by the cantinued
generation of substantiol cash flows from operating activities, which were $955
million or 8.9 percent of sales in fiscal 2007, a debt to debt-equity rafio of 21.4
pescent, ample borrowing capabilities ang strong short-term credit ratings.

Acquisition opportunities remoin available to the Company within its torget markets.
During fiscal 2007, the Company completed 11 acquisitions whose aggregate
incrementol annual revenues were approximotely $260 million. The Company
believes that future financia! results will reflect the benefit of a fast and efficient
integration of the companies recently acquired. Acquisitions will confinue to be
considered from time fo time to the extent there is  strong strategic fit, while at
the some time, maintaining the Company’s strong financial osition. The Company
will also continue to assess the strategic fit of its existing businesses and initiote
efforts to divest businesses that are nat considered to be o good long-term fit

for the Company, Future business divestitures could have o negative effect on

the Company’s results of operations.

The Company routinely stiives fo improve customer service levels and monage
changes in raw material prices and expenses related to employee heolth and weffare
benefits. The Company is currently focused on maintaining its financial strengh
through the current Industrial North Americon slowdown, especially in the outo-
motive, heavy-duty truck and construction markets. The Company has in place 0
number of strategic financia! performance initiatives relating to growth and margin
improvement in order to meet these challenges, including strategic procurement,
strategic pricing, leon enterprise, product innovation and business realignments.

The discussion below is structured to separately discuss each of the financial
statements presented on pages 22 to 25. All year references are to fiscal years.
Discussion of Consolidated Statement of Income

The Consolidated Statement of lncome summarizes the Compony’s operating
performance over the last three fiscal years.

{millions) 2007 2006 2005
Net sales $10,718 $ 9,386 $ 8,069
Gross profit margin 22.8% 21.5% 20.8%
Selling, general and

administrative expenses $ 1,227 $ 1,037 £ 860
Interest expense 83 76 67
Other (income) expense, net () (9) 8
{Gain) loss on disposal

of assets (17) 15 4
Effective tax rate from

continuing operations 28.4% 29.1% 27.8%
Income from

continuing operations $ 830 $ 638 $ 533

Income from
conrinuing operations,

as a percent of sales 7.7% 6.8% 6.6%
Discontinued operations $§ 0 5 72
Net income 5 830 5 673 $ 605

PARKER HANNIFIN CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2007

NET SALES in 2007 were 14.2 percent higher than 2006. The increose in soles in
2007 primaily reftects higher volume experienced ocross all Segments. Acquisitions
completed within the last 12 months contributed about 45 percent of the net sales
incrense. The effect of currency rate changes increased net sales by approximately
241 million.

Net sales in 2006 were 16.3 percent higher than 2005. The increase in sales in
2006 primarily reffects higher volume experienced across alf Segments. Acguisitions
completed within the lost 12 months contributed about one-half of the net sales
incrense. The effect of currency rate changes reduced net sates in 2006 by
approximately $38 million.

During 2007, the Compony experienced strong business conditions in several of

the markets of the Industrial International businesses and the Aerospace Segment.
Softer business conditions were experienced in o aumber of markets of the Industriol
North Ameica businesses ond the Climate & Industriel Contrals Segment. For 2008,
the Company expects the strong business conditions experienced in the Industrial
Infernational businesses and the Aerospoce Segment o continug while business
conditions in a number of the markets in the Industriol North American operations
ong Climate & Industriol Controls Segment will continue to be soft.

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN was higher in 2007 primarily due to a combination of the
incrense in sales and the effects of the Company’s financiol performance initiatives,
especially in the Industrial Internationa! businesses. Current-year acquisitions, not
vet fully integrated, negotively affected the current-year gross margin. The higher
margins in 2006 were primarity due o o combination of the increase in sales os
well os the effects of the Compony’s finoncial performance initiatives, especially

in the areos of lean manufacturing and strategic procurement.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES incieased 18.3 percent in
2007 primarily due to the higher sales volume, as well as higher expenses related
to research and development, incentive compensation and professional fees.

INTEREST EXPENSE increosed in 2007 primorily due to higher average debt out-
standing os well os higher interest rates, primarily on commercial paper botrowings.
Interest expense increased in 2006 as a result of higher overage debt outstanding
resulting from an increase i borrowings used o fund 2006 acquisition activity.

{GAIN) LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS includes plant and equipment disposals,
divestitures of businesses and miscellaneous osset adjusiments.

{millions) 2007 2006 2005
Plant and equipment disposals ~ $(11) $(1) 33
Divestitures () 10

Asset adjustments 6 1

The amount for divestitures in 2007 primarily relates to the final accounting for o
business divested in 2002. The amount for divestitures in 2006 primarily relates to
the sale of the Thermoplastics division.

EFFECTIVE TAX RATE FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS wos lower in 2007 primarily
due to o higher omount of research and development tax credits received in 2007

as compared to 2006. The effective tax rate in 2006 was higher primarily due to a
lower level of research and development fax credits as compored to 2005, parfiolly
offset by the effect of tax plgnning initiatives. In August 2007, a new German tox
rate was enacted. The effect of the new tox rate will be accounted for os a discrete
tax item in the first quarter of fiscol 2008 resulting in a tox benefit of approximately
7 million.




INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS — In addition to the individual income
statement items discussed above, the Company’s qualified defined benefit plans
posifively affected net income in 2007 by a decrease in expense of approximately
$21 million and odversely affected net income in 2006 by an odditienol expense of
approximately $1% million, both primarily due to changes in actuariat assumptions
and the amortization of actuarial losses. Net income in 2008 is expacted to be
positively affected by a decreose in pension expense related to the Company's
quolified defined benefit plans of approximately $14 million, primarily due to
changes in actuarial ossumptions ond lower expense from the amortization of

prior veass” actuariot losses.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS represents the operating results and related gain on the
sale, net of tox, of the Astron Buildings business which was divested in August 2005
and the Wynn's Specialty Chemical business which was divested in December 2004.

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) - Items included in other comprehensive
income (loss) are gains and losses that under generally accepted accounting
principles ore recorded directly info stockholders” equity. The following are the
Company’s items of other comprehensive income (loss):

{millions) 2007 2006 2005
Foreign currency

translation $120 $ 104 $13
Net unrealized gains

{losses) 5 (18)
Minimum pension liability

prior to the adoption of

FAS 158 222 167 (154)

 The change in foreign currency franslation in 2007 and 2006 primarily resulted from
the weakening of the U.S. dollor against most ather cumencies. See Note 10 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for discussion of the minimum pension liability.

Discussion of Business Segment Information

The Busingss Segment information presents sales, operating income and ossets on a
basis that is consistent with the manner in which the Company’s various businesses

- are managed for internol review and decision-making. See Note 1 to the Consolidated
- Finonciaf Statements for o description of the Company’s reportable business
segments.

INDUSTRIAL SEGMENT

(millions) 2007 2006 2005
Sales

North America $4,064 33,993 $ 3,517

International 3,901 2,903 2,398
Operating income

North America 598 597 468

International 533 354 267
Operating income

as a percent of sales

North America 14.7% 15.0% 13.3%

Internarional 13.7% 12.2% 11.1%
Backlog $1,393 $1,178 3 944
Assets 6,669 6,154 4,714
Return on average assets 17.7% 17.5% 16.4%

Sales in 2007 tor the Industrial North American operatiens were 1.8 percent higher
than 2006 following 0 13.6 percent increase from 2005 to 2006. Acquisitions
accounted for all of the sales incrense in 2007, Excluding acquisitions, sales were
lower in 2007 os g result of lower end-user demand experienced in several markets,
most notably automotive, heavy-duty truck and construction. The sales incrense from
2005 to 2006 wos primarily due to acquisitions as well os higher end-user demand
expenienced in virtuolly all maskets, with the lorgest increases in heovy-duty truck,
construction and oil and gas.

Sales in the Industrial International operations increased 34.4 percent in 2007
following an increase of 21.0 percent from 2005 to 2006. The sales increase in
2007 was primarily due fo acquisitions, which accounted for about 40 percent of the
soles increase, as well as higher volume in Europe, Latin America and the Asia Pacific
region. Foreign currency rate changes, primarily the weokening of the U.S. dollor
ogoinst the Euro, increased net sales in 2007 by $222 million. The increase in sales
from 2005 to 2006 was primarily due to acquisitions, which accounted for about
70 percent of the soles incrense, s well os higher volume in furope and the Asio
Pacific region.

The lower Industrial North American operating margins in 2007 were primarily due
to the lower volume, higher business realignment charges and higher raw materil
costs more than offsetting margin improvement from lean monufacturing initictives.
The higher Industrial Nerth American operating margin in 2006 were primarily due
to the increosed sales volume as well as operating efficiencies. Acquisitions, not yet
fully integrated, negetively impacted margins in both 2007 and 2006. Included in
Industrial North American operating income in 2007, 2006 and 2005 sre business
realignment charges of $9.8 million, $5.4 million and $3.7 million, respectively. The
business realignment charges resulted from actions the Company took to structure
the Industrial North American opesations to operate in their then current economic
environment and primarily consisted of severance costs and costs relofing to the
consalidution of manufacturing operations.

The Industricl International operating margin improvement in 2007 ond 2006 wos
primarily due to the higher sales volume, especially throughout all businesses in
Furope, 0s well os the effacts of the Company’s financiol performance initiatives.
Acquisitions, not fully integrated, negotively impacted margins in 2007 and 2006,
Operating income in 2007, 2006 ond 2005 induded $8.9 million, $10.3 million
and $9.9 million, respectively, of business reglignment charges thot were token

to appropriately structure primarily the European operations.

The Company anticipates Industrial North American sales for 2008 wilt exceed the
2007 level by ahout ane percent and Industrial Intermational snles for 2008 will
exceed the 2007 level by about 9.5 percent. Industria! North American operating
margins in 2008 are expected to range from 14.5 percent to 14.9 percant and
Industriol Infernational margins are expected to range from 14.0 percent to 14.4
percent, The Company expacts fo continue to take actions necessary to structure
appropriotely the Industrial Segment operations to operate in their current economic
environment. Such actiens may include the necessity ta record business realignment
charges in 2008.
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The increase in totel Industria! Segment backlog in 2007 was primarily due to
higher order rates in the Industrial Intemational businesses. The increose in backlog
in 2006 wos primarily due to ocquisitions, which contributed about one-half of the
incrense, as well os higher order rates in both the Industrial North American ond
Industria! International businesses.

The increase in assets in 2007 and 2006 was primorily due to current-year
acquisitions and the effect of currency fluctuations partially offset by o decrense
in property, plant and equipment.

AEROSPACE SEGMENT

{millions) 2007 2006 2005
Sales $ 1,685 $ 1,505 $ 1,359
Operating income 270 221 199
Operating income

as a percent of sales 16.0% 14.7% 14.7%
Backlog $ 1,359 $1.328 $ 1,229
Assets 779 748 658
Return on average assets 35.4% 31.4% 30.8%

Sales in 2007 incrensed 12.0 percent compared to en increese of 10.7 percent
from 2005 to 2006. The increase in sales in both 2007 and 2006 was primarily
due o on incresse in both commercial original equipment manufacturer (OEM)
and aftermorket volume. Soles in 2006 olso benefited from higher military market
volyme.

The higher morgins in 2007 were primarily due to the increased volume, with a
higher concenfration of seles occurring in the aftermarket businesses. Operating
margin in 2006 remained at the 2005 leve! primarily due to o higher concentration
of 2006 sales accurring in the commercial and military OEM businesses as well as
higher engineering costs incurred in 2006 for new programs.

Shipments in 2007 were obout the same as order rates resulfing in o slight change
in backlog from 2006. The increose in backlog in 2006 was primarily due to higher
order rates experienced in both the commercial and military businesses. For 2008,
sales are expected to remain of or be slightly higher than in 2007 and operafing

margins are expected to range from 15.7 percent fo 16.1 percent. Heavier concentra-

tion of commecial OEM vofume in future product mix could result in lower margins.

The increase in assets in 2007 and 2006 wos primarily due to increnses in accounts
receivoble and inventory. A portion of the increcse in assets in 2006 was also
attributable to an acquisition.

CLIMATE & INDUSTRIAL CONTROLS SEGMENT

(millions} 2007 2006 2005
Sales $ 1,068 $ 985 £ 794
Operating income 82 83 75
Operating income

as a percent of sales 7.7% 8.5% 9.4%
Backlog $ 183 $ 190 513
Assets 831 812 696
Return on average assets 10.0% 11.0% 14.2%

Sales in 2007 incrensed 8.4 percent compared to o 24.0 pescent increase in sales
from 2005 to 2006. The increase in sales in 2007 was primarily due to acquisi-
fions, which accounted for almost 70 percent of the increase. The increase in sales
in 2006 was primarily due fo acquisitions, which accounted for about one-half of the
soles increose, o5 well os higher end-user demand in the residential gir conditioning
mrket, which was driven by energy efficiency legislation. The lower margins in 2007
were primorily due to product mix, increased raw material costs as well as costs
incurred to integrote recent acquisitions. The lower marging in 2006 were primorily
due to manufacturing inefficiencies related to plant relocations and integration costs
related to acquisitions. Operafing income in 2006 included $3.6 million of business
realignment charges.

The Company anticipates sates in 2008 to remain at or be slightly higher than in
2007 and aperating margins in 2008 to be in a range of 7.8 percent to 8.2 percent,

The increase in assets in 2007 ond 2006 wos primarily due to acquisitions and an
increase in inventory parfially offset by a decling in property, plant and equipment.
The increose in 2006 was ulso due to an increase in accounts receivable.

Corporate assets decreased 64.7 percent in 2007 and 42.2 percent in 2006. The
fluctuation in 2007 is primarily due to a decrense in prepaid pension cost resulting
from the adoption of o new secounting pronouncement and ¢ decregse in cash.
The fluctuation in 2006 is primarily due to o decrease in cash partially offset by
an increase in investments and a decrease in inventory reserves.

Discussion of Consolidated Balance Sheet

The Consofidated Balance Sheet shows the Company’s financial position at yearend,
compared with the previous year-end. This stotement provides information to ossist
in assessing factors such os the Company’s liquidity and financial resaurces.

(millions) 2007 2006
Accounts receivable $1,738 $1,592
Inventories 1,266 1,183
Plant and equipment, net 1,736 1,694
Investments and orher assets 469 859
Goodwill 2,254 2,010
Intangible assets, ner 596 471
Accounts payable, trade 789 771
Shareholders’ equiry 4,712 4,241
Working capital $1,461 $1,458
Current ratio 1.76 1.87

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE are primarily receivables due from customers for sales of
product (51,560.2 million at June 30, 2007 and $1,475.9 million at June 30,
2006). The currentyear increase in accounts receivable is primarily due to acquisi-
tions as well as o higher leve! of sales experienced in the latter part of the cumrent
fiscal year as compared to fiscal 2006. Days soles outstanding relating to trade
receivables for the Company decreased to 49 days in 2007 from 51 days

in 2006.
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INVENTORIES increased primarily due to acquisitions. Days supply of inventory CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES — Cash provided by operating activities in
on hond increased to 62 days in 2007 from 60 days in 2006. 2007 wos comparable to the prior year. The curren-year increase in net income was
primorily offset by cash used to fund the Company’s qualified defined benefit plans.
Cosh flow from working capital items decreased in 2007 primarily due to on increase
in cosh flow used by inventories, accounts payable, trade ond occrued domestic and
foreign toxes offset by o decreose in cash flow used by accounts receivable and on

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET of accumulated depreciation, increased in 2007
primarily due to plant and equipment acquired in current-year acquisitions. parfiolly
offset by depreciation expense exceeding copital expenditures.

GooDWILL increased primorify gs g resulf of curent-year ocquisitions. increase in cash flow provided by accrued poyrolls and ather compensation.
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET consist primarily of patents, frademarks and customer CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIvITIES - The decrease in the amount of cash
lsts. Intgngible ossefs, net increased primarily due to current-year acquisitions. used in investing activities in 2007 s primarily due fo o decrease in acquisision

activity partially offset by the absence of proceeds from the sale of businesses.
Refer to Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for o summary of net
pssets of acquired companies at their respective acquisition dates.

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS decreased due to the effect of the adaption of
FASB Statement No. 158, “Employers” Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirement Plons” as discussed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Finandial

Statements. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES — The increase in cash used in financing

. ) . activities from the prior year is due to common share activity which used cosh of
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, TRADE increased siightly due fo acquistions. $364.3 milfion in 2007 compased to providing cash of $16.9 million in 2006.
ACCRUED PAYROLLS AND OTHER COMPENSATION increased fo $376.7 million Common share activity primarily invalves the exercise of stock options and the
from $297.0 million primorily due to higher incentive compensation accruals repurchase of shares of the Company’s common stock for freasury. The change in
and ecquisitions. common share activity in 2007 is primorily due to a higher level of repurchases of

the Company’s common stock foi reasury during 2007 os compared to 2006. n

ACCRUED DOMESTIC AND FOREIGN TAXES increased to $152.7 million in 2007 August 2007, the Company entered into an accelerated stock repurchuse ogreement.
from $140.4 million in 2006 primorll due to higher taxable income in 2007. See Notes 8 ond 11 fo the Consolidated Finoncial Statements for further discussion.
PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS decreased 54571 milfion Dividends have been paid for 228 consecutive quarters, including o yeorly increcse
in 2007. The change in this amount is exploined further in Note 10 to the in dividends for the last 51 fiscal years. The cument expected annual dividend rate,
Consolidated Finonciol Stotements. before giving effect to the stock split authorized in August 2007, is $1.26 per share.
NET DEFERRED INCOME TAXES increased S34 millon over the prior year and The Company’s goal is to mainfoin no fess thon on “A” tating on senior debt to
ore discussed further in Note 4 to the Consolidated Financiol Statements. ensure availobility ond reasonable cost of external funds. As ane means of achieving

this objective, the Company has estoblished a financial goal of mointaining a ratic
of debt to debt-equity of no more than 37 percent.

Debt to Debt-Equity Ratio

SHAREHOLDERS’ €QUITY - The chonge in shoreholders” equity is explained
in Note 12 to the Consolidoted Financia! Stotements,

Discussion of Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (dollars in millions) 2007 2006
Debt $ 1,285 $1,132

The Consolidated S'turemen? of Cosh F.!uws reﬂgcts cash inflows and outflows Debt & Equity 5,997 5373

from the Company’s operating, investing and financing octivities. Rario 21.4% 21.1%

A summary of cosh flows fllows: The Company has the availability to issue securities under its universol sheff

{millions) 2007 2006 2005 registration statement. Securities thot may be issued under this shelf registration
Cash provided by (used in): statement include debt secusities, common stock, serial preferred stock, depositary
Operating activities $ 955 $ 955 $ 853 shares, worrants, stock purchase contracts and stock purchase units.
Investing activities (579} (921) (565) \ . i "
Financing activicies (379) (194) (138) As of June 30, 2007, the Company has a ling of credit totaling $1,025 million

theough o multi-cumency revolving credit agreement with @ group of banks. The

Effect of exchange rates 4 (4) 2 , . "
Net increase (decreasd) Company has the right, no more than ence a yeor, to increase the facility omount,
in cash and cash equivalents  § 1 S (164) $ 152 in minimum increments of $25 million up to o moximum facility amount of $1,250

million. The credit agreement expires October 2011, however the Company hos the

right to request o one-year extension of the expiration date on an onnuel bosis. The
wredit egreement supports the Company’s commercial poper note progrom, which is
reted A1 by Stondord & Poor's, P-1 by Moody's and F-1 by Fitch, Inc. These ratings
are considered investment grode. The revolving credit ogreement contains provisions

_ A
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that increase the facility fee of the credit agreement in the event the Company’s
eredit rafings are lowered. A lowering of the Company’s credit ratings would not
fimit the Company’s ability to use the credit agreement nor would it accelerate the
repayment of any outstanding horrowings.

The Company seeks to minimize its fotal cost of borrowing and therefore uses its
commercial paper note progrom as its primary source of working copital liquidity.
The primary olternative source of borrowing for working capital liquidity is the
committed line of credit, which typically bears a higher cost of bormowing.

The Company's credit agreements and indentures governing certain debt agreements
contoin various covenants, the violation of which would limit or preclude the use of
the credit agreements for future borrowings, or might accelerate the maturity of the
reloted outstanding borrowings covered by the indentures. At the Company's prasent
rating level, the most restrictive financial covenant provides that the rafio of secured
debt to net tangible assets be less than 10 percent. As of June 30, 2007, the rofio
of secured debt to net tangible ossets was fess than one percent. The Company is in
compliance with oll covenants and expects o remain in compliance during the term
of the credit agreements end indentures.

Based upon the Company’s past performance and current expectations, management
helieves the cash flows generated from future operating activities should provide
adequate funds to support intemal growth and continued improvements in the
Company’s manufacturing facilities and equipment. The Company's worldwide
financia! capabilifies may be used to support planned growth, dividend payments
and share repurchases, os needed. The Company regularly considers acquisition
opporfunities and additional borrowings may be used to finance acquisitions
ompleted in 2008.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS - The following table summarizes the Company’s fixed
contractual obligafions.

In thousands Payments due by period

Contractual Less than More than

obligations Total 1 vear  1-3 years  3-5 years 5 years
Long-term

debt

(Noce 9}  § 1,148,935 § 59,019 § 59,709 § 419,867 $ 610,340
Interest on

long-term

debt 312,828 50,405 93,301 79,451 89,671
Operating

leases

{Note 9) 222,022 64,385 75,733 30,527 51,377
Retirement

benefits

{Note 10) 1,601,580 160,316 260,339 293,908 887,017
Total $3,285,365 $334,125 $489,082 $823,753 $1,638,405

Quanfitative ond Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The Company enters info forward exchange contracks and <ostless collor controcts
to reduce its exposure to fluctuations in related foreign currencies. The total carrying
amount and fair value of open contracts and any fisk to the Company os a result of
these arrangements is not material to the Company's finandial position, liguidity or
results of operations.

The Company’s debt portfolio contains voriable rate debt, inherently exposing the
Company to interest rate risk. The Company’s objective is to maintain o 60,/40 mix
between fixed rote and variable rate debt theredy limifing its expasure to chonges in
nearerm interest rates. & 100 basis point incrense in near-term interest rates would
increase annual inferest expense on variable rote debt existing at June 30, 2007 by
approximatety $2.1 million.

0ff-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company does not have off-balance sheet amangements.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the omounts reported in the finoncial
statements and accompanying notes. The policies discussed below are considered by
management to be more critical than other policies because their application places
the most significant demands on management's judgment.

REVENUE RECOGNITION - Substontially all of the Industrial Segment and Climate &
Industriol Confrols Segment revenues are recognized when the risks ond rewards of
ownership and fitle to the product have tronsfered to the customer. This generally
takes ploce at the time the product is shipped. The Aerospace Segment uses the
percentage of completion, units of delivery method fo recognize a portion of its
revenue. The percentage of completion method requires the use of estimates of
tosts to complete long-erm contracts and for some contracts includes estimating
costs related to aftermorket orders. The estimation of these costs requires substantial
judgment on the part of monagement due to the duration of the contracts os well
os the technical roture of the products invalved. Adjustments to estimated costs are
made on a consistent basis and a contract reserve is established when the costs to
complete o contract exceed the confract revenues.

IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL AND LONG-LIVED ASSETS - Goodwill is fested for
impaimment, at the reporting unit fevel, on an annual basis and between annual tests
whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying volue of a reporting unit
may exceed its foir volue. A discounted cash flow model is used to esfimate the fair
volue of a reporting unit. This model requires the use of long-term planning fosecasts
and assumptions regarding industry specific economic conditions that are outside the
control of the Company. Long-lived ussets held for use are evaluated for impairment
whenever events or circumstances indicate that the undiscounted net cosh flows fo
ba generated by their use and eventual disposition is less than their carrying value.
The long-term noture of these assets reguires the estimation of its cash inflows and
outflows several years info the future and only takes into consideration technological
advances known at the time of the impairment test,

»
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INVENTORIES - Inventories ore valued of the lower of cost or market, Cost is
determined on the laskin, firsk-out bosis for o mojority of U.S. inventories and
on the firstn, first-out bosis for the balonce of the Company’s inventories.
lnventories have been reduced by an allowonce for obsolete inventories. The
estimated allowance is bosed on management’s review of inventories on hend
compared to estimated future usage and sales. Changes in the allowance hove
not had a material effect on the Company's results of operations, fingngial
position or cash flows.

PENSIONS AND POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - The annual net
periodic expense and benefit obligatiens refated to the Company’s defined benefit
plans are determined on an actuarial basis. This determination requires critical
gssumptions regarding the discount rate, long-ferm retum on plan assets, increases
in compensation levels, amortization periads for actuadial gains ond losses and
health care cost trends. Assumptions are determined based on Cempany data

and appropriate morket indicators, and are evaluated each year as of the plan’s
measurement date. Changes in the assumptions to reflect actug experience as well
as the omortization of octuariol gains and losses could result in @ material change
in the annual net periodic expense and benefit obligations reparted in the finenciol
statements. For the Company’s domestic defined benefit plons, o one-half percentage
point change in the assumed long-term rate of return on plan assets is estimated
to have on $8 million effect on pension expense and a one-half percentage point
decrease in the discount rate is estimated to increase pension expense by S14
million. As of June 30, 2007, 52676 million of post yeors' net octuarial losses
elated to the Company’s domestic qualified defined benefit plons have yet to be
amartized. These losses wili generally be amortized over approximotely 17 years
and will negatively affect eamings in the future. Actuarigl gains experienced in
future vears will help reduce the effect of the octuariol loss amortization.

Further information on pensions and postretirement benefits ather than pensions is
provided in Note 10 to the Consoliduted Finandial Statements.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION ~ The computation of the expense associoted with
stock-based compensation requires the use of o valuotion model. The Company
currently uses o Black-Scholes option pricing model to calculate the fair value of
its stock options and stock appreciation rights. The Black-Scholes model requires
assumptions regerding the volatility of the Company's stock, the expected life of
the stack oword and the Company's dividend ratio. The Company primarily uses
historicol data fo determine the ossumptions to be used in the Black-Scholes model
and has no reason to believe that future data is likely to differ moterially from
historical dota. Howeves, changes in the assumptions to reflect future stack price
volatility, future dividend payments and future stock award exercise experience
could result in a change in the assumptions used to volue awards in the future
and may result in o matesial change to the foir value calculation of stock-hased
awards.

OTHER LOSS RESERVES - The Compony has @ number of loss exposures incurred in the
ordinary course of business such as environmental claims, product liability, lifigation,
recoverabifity of deferred income tax benefits and accounts receivable reserves.
Establishing loss reserves for these matters requires management’s estimate and
judgment with regards to risk exposure and ultimote liability or realization. These
loss reserves ore reviewed periodicolly and adjustments are made to reflect the most
recent focts and circumstances.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

in July 2006, the Finoncial Accounting Stondords Board (FASB) issued FASB
Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Toxes - An Interprefation
of FASB Statement 109" (FIN 48). FIN 48 prescribes o comprehensive model for how
o company should recognize, measure, present, and disclose in its finandial statements
uncertoin tax positions that the company hos taken or expects 1o take on g fox return.
FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning ofter December 15, 2006. The Company
has not yet finalized the effect on the Company’s finenciol position or results of
operations of complying with the provisions of FIN 48 but does not anficipate the
effect to be material.

In August 2006, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.”
Statement No. 157 defines fair volue, establishes o framework for measuring fair volue
in generally accepted occounting principles, and expands disdosures about fair value
measurements. Stotement No. 157 is effective for fiscol years beginning ofter November
15, 2007. The Company has not yet detesmined the effect on the Company’s financial
position or results of operations of complying with the provisions of Statement No, 157,

In February 2007, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 159, “Fair Value Optien
for Finandiol Assets and Financial Liobifities.” Stotement No. 159 permits entities to
choose to measure mony financial instruments and certain other items at fair valus
ond is effective for fiscol years beginning after Novernber 15, 2007. The Company
has not yet determined whether it will elact to measure any of its financind ossets
and finonciol liabilities ot fair volue o permitted by Statement No, 159.




(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

For the years ended June 30, 2007 2006 2005
Net Sales $10,718,059 $ 9,385,888 $ 8,068,805
Cost of sales 8,272,949 7,367,618 6,391,477
Gross profit 2,445,110 2,018,270 1,677,328
Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,226,861 1,036,646 860,278
Interest expense 83,414 75,763 66,869
Other (income) expense, net (7,183) (9,393) 8,040
{Gain) loss on disposal of assets (17,264) 15,296 3,870
Income from continuing operations before income raxes 1,159,282 899,958 738,271
Income taxes (Note 4) 329,236 261,682 205,105
Income from continuing opetations 830,046 638,276 533,166
Income from discontinued operations (Note 2) 34,891 71,526
Net Income $ 830,046 $ 673,167 $ 604,692
Earnings per Share (Note 5)
Basic earnings per share
Income from continuing operations $ 713 $ 5.35 $ 4.49
Income from discontinued operations 0.30 0.60
Net income per share $ 7.13 $ 5.65 3 5.09
Diluted earnings per share
Income from continuing operations $ 7.01 $ 5.28 $ 4.43
Income from discontinued operations .29 0.59
Net income per share $ 7.01 $ 5.57 $ 5.02

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

For the years ended June 30, 2007 2006 2005
Net Income $ 830,046 $ 673,167 $ 604,692
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes (Note 11):
Foreign currency translation adjustment 119,582 103,842 13,138
Minimum pension liabilicy 221,546 167,008 (154,377)
(Loss) on marketable equity securities (26) (10,697)
Cash flow hedging gain (loss) 236 5,321 (7,318)
Comprehensive Income $ 1,171,410 $ 949,312 $ 445,438

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

By Industry
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
Net Sales: Depreciation:

Industrial: Industrial $ 196,377 § 196,751 $ 198247
North America $ 4,063,889 § 3,993,370 $ 3,516,627 Aerospace 20,480 20,412 20,777
International 3,900,628 2,902,508 2,398,439 Climate & Industrial

Aerospace 1,685,431 1,504,922 1,359,431 Controls 22,546 23,625 19,954

Climate & Industrial Corporare 5,655 4,893 6,228
Controls 1,068,111 985,088 794,308 $ 245,058 $ 245681 § 245,206

$10,718,05% §$ 9,385,888 8,068,805
Segment Operating Income: Bv G hic A

Industrial: Yy faeographic Area ()

North America $ 598,405 § 597204 $ 408,213 2007 2006 2005
International 533,136 353,760 267,207 Net Sales:

Acrospace 269,931 221,005 199,187 North America $ 6,483,168 $ 6,219,054 § 5,455,466

Climate & Industrial [nternational 4,234,891 3,166,834 2,613,339
Conrrols 82,316 83,256 74,843 $10,718,059  $ 9,385,888 $8,068,805

Total segment .
operating income 1483,788 1,255,225 1,009450 Lor:lii-rltﬁv;i::;m $ 962,047 $ 978,028 $ 1,027,376
Corporate administration 179,077 133,695 111,615 International 774’325 715‘766 ’553’972
Income from continuing ’ ‘ -
operations before interest $ 1,736,372 % 1,693,794 $ 1,581,348
expense and other 1,304,711 1,121,530 897,835
g":"m cxpense 2;'::: 1255 ’gg; ggggz The accounting policies of the business segments are the some as those described in
Therexpense ’ i i the Significont Accounting Policies footnote except that the business seqment results
Ing;g;zé(r;::?bc:fgtlnulng are prepared on o basis that is consistent with the manner in which the Company’s
114 N g e . . . L. .
income taxes $ 1,159,282 § 899958 $ 738.271 management disaggregates financial information for intemal review and decisien-making.
Identifiable Assets: (n) Corporate assets are principolly cash and cash equivalents, domestic deferred

Industrial $ 6,669,186 $ 6153559 § 4,713,574 income toxes, investments, benefit plan assets, hedquarters focilities, assets

Acrospace 778,777 748,213 658,394 helq for sale and the major portion of the Company’s domestic dato processing

Climate & Industrial equipment.

Controls 831,482 812,218 695,641 (b} Includes the value of net plant and equipment ot the dote of acquisifion of
8,279,443 7713990 6,067,609 acquired companies accounted for by the purchase method (2007 — $31 458;
Corporate (a) 161,970 459,442 793,094 2006 - $179,803; 2005 — 5104,358).

$ 8,441,413

$ 8,173,432 $ 6,860,703

Property Additiens (b):

Industrial $ 203,448 § 292,671 § 196,394
Acrospace 21,343 18,827 12,919

Climate & Industrial
Controls 17,170 41,459 40,050
Corporate 27,324 24,959 9,900
$ 269285 § 377916 § 239,263

(c) Net sales are attributed o countries based on the location of the selling unit.
North America includes the United States, Conodo and Mexico. No country other
than the United States represents greater than 10% of consolidated sales. Long-
lived assets ore comprised of property, plant and equipment based on physicol
location.




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

{DOLLARS [N THOUSANDS)

June 30, 2007 2006
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 172,706 $ 171,553
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts
(2007 - $11,655; 2006 - $12,332) 1,737,748 1,592,323
Inventories (Notes | and 6):
Finished products 518,901 520,159
Work in process 581,745 494,469
Raw materials 165,156 168,250
1,265,802 1,182,878
Prepaid expenses 69,655 64,238
Deferred income taxes (Notes 1 and 4) 140,264 127,986
Total Current Assets 3,386,175 3,138,978
Plant and equipment (Note 1):
Land and land improvements 258,121 212,750
Buildings and building equipment 1,189,679 1,116,634
Machinery and equipment 2,753,531 2,702,389
Construction in progress 76,449 54,594
4,277,780 4,086,367
Less accumulated depreciation 2,541,408 2,392,573
1,736,372 1,693,794
Investments and other assets (Note 1) 469,190 859,107
Goodwill (Notes 1 and 7) 2,254,069 2,010,458
Intangible assers, net (Notes | and 7) 595,607 471,095
Total Assets $ 8,441,413 $ 8,173,432
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities
Notes payable and long-term debt payable within one year {Notes 8 and 9) $ 195,384 $ 72,039
Accounts payable, trade 788,560 770,665
Accrued payrolls and other compensation 376,678 297,071
Accrued domestic and foreign taxes 152,739 140,387
Other accrued liabilities 411,884 400,943
Total Current Liabilities 1,925,245 1,681,105
Long-term debt {Note 9) 1,089,916 1,059,461
Pensions and other postretirement benefits (Noze 10) 354,398 811,479
Deferred income taxes (Notes 1 and 4} 114,219 118,544
Other liabilities 245,970 261,640
Total Liabilities 3,729,748 3,932,229
Shareholders’ Equity (Note 11)
Serial preferred stock, $.50 par value, authorized 3,000,000 shares; none issued
Cominon stock, $.50 par value, authorized 600,000,000 shares;
issued 120,683,890 shares in 2007 and 2006 at par value 60,342 60,342
Additional capiral 512,239 510,869
Retained earnings 4,625,195 3,916,412
Unearned compensation related to ESOP (Note 9) {15,192) {25,809)
Deferred compensation related o stock options 2,269 2,347
Accumulated other comprehensive {loss) {112,621} (194,819)
5,072,232 4,269,342
Common stock in treasury ar cost: 4,524,670 shares in 2007 and 368,695 shares in 2006 (360,567) (28,139)
Total Sharcholders’ Equity 4,711,665 4,241,203
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 8,441,413 $ 8,173,432

The accompanying notes are an incegral pare of the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

For the years ended June 30, 2007 2006 2005
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net income $ 830,046 $ 673,167 $604,692
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activiies:
Net (income) from discontinued operations (34,891} (71,526}
Depreciation 245,058 245,681 245,206
Amortization 49,508 35,290 17,484
Stock-based compensation 33,203 33,448
Deferred income taxes (28,652) (50,548) 16,102
Foreign currency transaction (gain} loss (18,644) 8,216 9,092
{Gain) loss on sale of plant and equipment (17,264) 5,438 3,870
Loss on divestiture of businesses 9,858
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects
from acquisitions and divestitures:
Accounts receivable (54,701) (109,978) (6,540)
Inventories (15,018) 17,498 17,083
Prepaid expenses (7,078) {2,037) (2,736)
Other assets (129,814) {29,419) (13,607)
Accounts payable, trade (16,944) 56,202 37,611
Accrued payrolls and other compensation 59,846 17,783 23,387
Accrued domestic and foreign 1axes 9,135 70,451 (4,781}
Other accrued liabilities 4,496 (2,781) {13,999}
Pensions and other postrecirement benefits 7,180 9,470 (1,971}
Other liabilicies 4,650 53,050 4,997
Discontinued operations (3,259) (10,858)
Nert cash provided by operating activities 955,007 954,639 853,506
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Acquisitions (less cash acquired of $15,591 in 2007,
$42.429 in 20006, and $21,720 in 2005) (378,639) (835,981} (558,569)
Capiral expenditures (237,827) (198,113) (154,903)
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment 45,826 41,098 20,284
Proceeds from sale of businesses 92,715 120,000
Other (9,121) (20,862) 10,223
Discontinued operations (100) (2,416)
Net cash (used in) investing activities (579,761) (921,243) (565,383)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
(Payments for) proceeds from commeon share activity, net (364,339) 16,931 (23,724)
Proceeds from (payments of} notes payable, net 111,300 (8,262) (16,927)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 52,278 495,796 1,094
(Payments of) long-term borrowings (56,505) (589,014) (5,369)
Dividends paid, net of tax benefit of ESOP shares (121,263) {109,643) (92,612)
Net cash (used in) financing activities (378,529) (194,192) (137,538)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 4,436 (3,731) 1,648
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,153 (164,527) 152,233
Cash and cash equivalents ar beginning of year 171,553 336,080 183,847
Cash and cash equivalents ar end of year $ 172,706 $ 171,553 $ 336,080
Supplemental Data:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest, net of capitalized inrerest $ 81,489 $ 72,183 $ 66,827
Income taxes 304,540 165,180 186,853

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nore 1. Significant Accounfing Policies

The significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of the accompanying
consolidated financial statements are summarized below.

NATURE OF OPERATIONS - The Company is a leading worldwide diversified
manufocturer of motion control technologies and systems, praviding precision
engineered solutions for a wide variety of commercial, mobile, industrial and
gerospoce markets. The Company evaluates perfermance based on segment
operating income before Corporate general ond administrative expenses, Inferest
expense and Income taxes.

The Company operates in three business segments: Industrial, Aerospace and Climate
& Industrial Controls. The Industriat Segment is an aggregation of several business
units, which manufacture motion-control and fluid power system components for
builders and users of various types of manufacturing, packaging, processing,
fransportation, agricultural, construction, and mifitary vehicles and equipment.
Industrial Segment products are marketed primarily through field sales employees
and independent distributors. The North Americon Industrial business represents the
lorgest portion of the Compeny’s manufacturing plants and distiibution networks
and primarily services North America, The International Industril operations provide
Parker products and services to countries throughaut Europe, Asia Pacific and Latin
America.

The Aerospace Segment produces hydraulic, fuel and pneumatic systems and
components, which are ulilized on virtually every domestic commerdial, mifitary and
generol gviation gircraft and also performs a vital role in noval vessels and lond-
based weapons systems. This Segment serves original equipment and maintenance,
repair and overhaul customers worldwide. Aerospace Segment products are marketed
by field sales employees and are sold directly to manufacturers and end users.

The Climate & Industrial Controls Segment manufactures motion-control systems
and compenents for use primarily in the refrigeration and air conditioning and
transportation industries. The products in the Climate & Industriol Controls Seqment
are marketed primarily through field sales employees and independent diskribytors.

See the table of Business Segment Information “By Industry” and “By Geographic
Areo” on page 23 for further disclosure of business segment infarmation,

There are no individual customers to wham sales gre three percent or more of the
Company’s consolidated sales. Due to the diverse group of customers throughout the
world the Company does not consider itself exposed to any concentration of credit
risks.

The Company manufactures and markets its products throughout the world. Although
certain risks and uncertainties exist, the diversity and breadth of the Company’s
products and geographic operations mitigate significantly the risk that adverse
changes would materially affect the Company's operating results.

USE OF ESTIMATES ~ The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally occepted in the United States of America requires
management to moke estimates and assumptions that affect the smounts reported
in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION - The consolidated finoncial statements indude the
accounts of all majority-owned domestic and foreign subsidiaries. All material
intercompany fransactions and profits have heen eliminated in the consolidated

financial statements. The Company does not hove off-balance sheet arrangements.
Within the Business Segment Information, intersegment and interarea sales are
recorded at fair morket volue and are immaterigl in amount,

REVENUE RECOGNITION - Revenue is recognized when the risks and rewards of
ownership and title to the product have transferred to the customer. The Company’s
revenue recognition policies are in compliance with the SECs Staff Accounting
Bulletin (SAB) No. 104. Shipping and handling costs billed to customers are
included in Net sates and the related costs in Cost of sales.

casH - Cosh equivalents consist of short-ferm highly liquid investments, with
o three-month ar less maturity, carried af cost plus accrued interest, which are
readily convertible into cash.

INVENTORIES - Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. The mojority
of domestic inventories are valued by the lostin, first-out method and the balance
of the Company’s inventeries are valued by the firstin, first-out methed.

LONG-TERM CONTRACTS - The Company enters info long-tem contiacts for the
production of aerospace products. For financiol statement purpases, revenues are
recognized using the percentage-of-complefion method. The extent of progress
toward completion is mesured using the units-of-delivery method. Unbilled costs
on these contracts ore included in inventory. Progress payments are netted against
the inventory balances. Provisians for estimated losses on uncompleted contracts
are mode in the period in which such losses are determined.

PLANT, EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION - Plont and equipmant are recorded at cost
and are depreciated principally using the straightling method for financial reporting
purposes. Depreciation rates are based on estimated useful lives of the assets,
generolly 40 years for buildings, 15 years for land improvements ond building
equipment, seven to 10 years for machinery and equipment, and three to five
years for vehicles and office equipment. Improvements, which extend the useful
life of property, are capitolized, and maintenance and repairs are expensed. When
property is retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and accumulated depreciation
ore removed from the appropriate accounts and any gain or loss is induded in
current income.

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS - Investments in joint-venture companies in

which ownership is 50% or less and in which the Company does not have operating
control are stated ot cost plus the Company’s equity in undistributed eamings. These
investments and the relgted eomings are not materiol to the consolidated financial
stotements. Dusing 2005 the Company recorded o charge of 58,766 {5.05 per
share) related to o real estate investment. Investments and other assets inchude

a prepaid pension cost ot June 30, 2006 of $344,987 ond on infangible asset
recognized in connection with on additionol minimum pension liability of $86,071
gt June 30, 2006.

600DwILL - The Company conducts o formal impairment test of goodwill on an
annual basis and between annual fests if an event occurs or drcumstances change
that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of o reparting unit below its
carrying value.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - Intongible ossefs primarily include petents, trademarks ond
customer lists and ore recorded at cost and omortized on o straightine method.
Patents are amortized over their remaining legal life. Trodemarks are amortized

over the estimated time period over which an economic benefit is expected fo be
received. Customer lists are omortized over a perfod bosed on historical customer
aftrition rates.
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INCOME TAXES - Income taxes are provided based upon income for financial reporting
purposes. Deferred income taxes arise from temporary differences in the recognifion
of income and expense for tax purposes. Tox credits and similar tox incentives are
applied to reduce the provision for income taxes in the year in which the credits orise.

PRODUCT WARRANTY - In the ordinary course of business the Compony warrants
its products against defect in design, materials and workmanship over various time
periods. The warranty accrual at June 30, 2007 ond 2006 is immateriol to the
financial posifion of the Company and the change in the accrual during 2007, 2006
and 2005 was immateriol fo the Company’s results of operations and cash flows.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION — Assets ond liabilities of most foreign subsidiories
are hanslgted ot cument exchange rates, and income and expenses are franslated
using weighted averoge exchange retes, The effects of these franstation adjustments,
as well as gains and losses from certqin intercompany transactions, are reported in
the Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) component of Sharehalders’ equity.
Such edjustments will affect Nes income only upon sale or liquidation of the
underlying foreign investments, which is not contemplated at this time. Exchange
qains and losses from transactions in o currency other than the local currency of the
entity involved, ond translation adjustments in countries with highly inflationory
economies, are included in Net income.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - The Company’s financial instruments consist primarily

of investments in cosh, cash equivalents and long-term investments as well as
obligations under notes payable and long-ferm debt. Due to their short-term nature,
the canrying values for Cash and cash equivalents, Investments and other assets and
Notes poyable approximate fair valug. See Note 9 for fair value of long-term deht.

The Company enters into forward exchange contracts (forward contracts) ond
costiess collor contracts to reduce its exposure to fluctuotions in reloted foreign
currencies. These cantracts are with major finandial institufions and the risk of
loss is considered remote. The Company does not held or issue derivative financial
insfruments for trading purposes.

Gains or losses on forward contracts thot hedge specific transactions are recognized
in Net income, offsetting the underlying foreign cumency gains or losses. Gains or
losses on costless collor contracts are recognized in Net income when the spot rate
of the contract folls outside the collar range.

In addition, the Company’s foreign locatfons in the ordinary course of business enter
into financial quorantees through financial institutions which enable customers to be
reimbursed in the event of nonperformance by the Company.

The totof carrying omount and fair value of open forward exchange and costless
collar contracts and any risk to the Company as o result of the arrangements
described above is not matenig!.

STOCK AWARDS - On July 1, 2005, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB
Statement No. 123 (revised 2004) and elected 1o use the modified prospective
tronsition method. The modified prospective tronsition method requires that
compensation cost be recognized in the financial statements for oll awards granted
tfter the date of adoption as well as for existing owards for which the requisite
service has not been rendered as of the date of adoption and requires thor prior
periods not be restated. Prior to the odoption of FASB Statement No. 123 (revised
2004), the Company used the intrinsic-voiue based method to account for stack
awards and made no chorges against earnings with respect to owords gronted.

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

The foflowing table illustrates the effect on net income ond earnings per share as if
the fair volue bosed method had been applied to lf eutstanding and unvested stock
awards using the non-substantive vesting period opproach:

2005
Net income, as reporred $ 604,692
Add: Stock-based employee
compensation included in
reported net income,
ner of tax 10,139
Deducr: Total stack-based
employee compensation
expense determined
under fair value methed,
net of tax 28,609
Pro forma net income $ 586,222
Earnings per share:
Basic:  as reported $5.09
pro forma $4.93
Dilued: as reported $5.02
pro forma $4.87

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS - [n September 2006, the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Statement No. 158, “Employers’
Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plons.” Statement
No. 158 amends FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132R. Stotement No. 158
requires on employer to recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of a defined
benefit postretirement plon as an asset or liability in its statement of finonciol
position and o recognize chonges in thot funded status in the year in which the
changes occur through comprehensive income. Statement No. 158 also requires
an employer to measure the funded status of a plan as of the date of its yeorend
statement of finoncial condifion. The measurement date provision of Statement
No. 158 is effective for the Company for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.
The funded status recognition provision was odopted by the Company as of June
30, 2007 and had the foltowing effects on the individual line irems on the
Consolidoted Bolance Sheet:

Before After

Application of Statement No.158 Application of
Statement No. 158 Adjustments Srarement No. 158

[nvestments and

other assets $ 906,516 $ (437.326) $ 469,190
Toral assets 8,878,739 (437,326) 8,441,413
Pensions and other

postretirement

benefits 375,847 (21,449) 354,398
Deferred income taxes 270,930 (156,711) 114,219
Total liabilities 3,907,908 (178,160) 3,729,748
Accumulated other

comprehensive

income (loss) 146,545 (259,166) (112,621)
Total Shareholders’

Equity 4,970,831 (259,166) 4,711,665

In July 2008, the FASB issued FASB Interpratation No. 48, “Accounting for
Uncertointy in Income Taxes - An Inferpretation of FASB Statement 109" (FIN 48).
FIN 48 prescribes o comprehensive model for how @ company should recognize,
measure, present, and disclose in its financial statements uncertain tox positions
that @ company has token or expects to toke on o tox return. FIN 48 is effective for
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fiscal years beginning ofter December 15, 2006. The Compony has not yet finalized
the effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations of complying
with the provisions of FIN 48 but does not anticipate the effect to be material.

in August 2008, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 157, “Fair Volue
Measuremnents.” Statement No. 157 defines fair value, establishes o frarmewark

for measuring fair volue in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands
disclosures abour fair value measurements. Statement Ne. 157 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company has not yet determined the
effect on the Company’s financiat positian of results of operations of complying with
the provisions of Statement No. 157,

In February 2007, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 159, “The Fair Value Option
for Financiol Assets ond Finoncia! Liakilifies.” Statement No. 159 permits entities to
choose to meosure many finonciol instruments and certain other items ot fair value
ond is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, The Company
has not yet determined whether it will elect to measure any of its finoncial ossets
and finoncial liobilities at fair volue as perritted by Statement No. 159,

RECLASSIFICATIONS AND REVISIONS — Certoin prior period amounts have been
reclassified to conform to the current-yeor presentatien.

wote 2. Acquisitions and Divestitures

AcQUISITIONS - In April 2007, the Company ocquired Rectus AG, o manufacturer of
quick disconnect couplings and related products for pneumatic, hydraulic, medical,
and chemical processing applications. Aggregate incremental annual sales for this
business and 10 other businesses acquired during fiscal 2007, for their most recent
fiscal yeor prior fo acquisition, were approximately $240 millin. Total purchase price
for ll acquisitions acquired during fiscal 2007 was approximately $394 million in
cosh and $15 million in assumed debt.

In August 2005, the Company acquired SSO, a manufacturer of AC and DC

drives, os well os servo drives, motors and systems for leading original equip-
ment manufocturers, end users, and integrators in qutomated industiial process
applications. In Nevember 2005, the Company completed its purchase of domaick
hunter group, ple. The domnick hunter group specializes in the design and manu-
facture of filtration, seporation, and purification products and technologies for
wide range of markets. in December 2005, the Company completed its acquisition
of Kenmore Intemational, o monufacturer and distributor of componeats for globol
refrigeration and air conditioning markets. Aggregate annual sales for these and 10
other businesses acquired during fiscal 2006, for their most recent fiscal yeor prior
to acquisition, were approximately $983 million. Tota} purchuse price for ol acqui-
sitions acquired during fiscof 2006 wos approximately $878 million in cash and
$231 million in ossumed debt.

in October 2004, the Company completed the acquisition of the Sporlan Valve
Company (Sporlan). Sporlan is o manufacturer of refrigeration and air conditioning
components, controls and systems. In November 2004, the Company acquired
Acodin Flostomers Corporation, o producer of sealing solutions. Annual sales for
these husinesses and eight other businesses acquired during fiscal 2005, for their
most recent fiscol year prior to sequisition, were approximately $410 million. Total
purchase price for all businesses acquired during fiscal 2005 was approximately
5580 million in cash and $15 million in ossumed debt.

The results of operations for oll acquisitions are induded os of the respective dotes
of acquisition. The initiat purchase price allocation and any subsequent purchose price
odjustments for acquisitions in 2007, 2006 ond 2005 are presented below. Some
of the 2007 purchase price allocations are prefiminary and may require subsequent
adjustment.

2007 2006 2005
Assets acquired:
Accounts receivable $ 47534  $223,658 % 51,333
Inventories 36,654 161,434 58,513
Prepaid expenses {3,604) 11,561 2,703
Deferred income taxes 9,066 4,780 1,919
Plant and equipment 31,458 179,803 104,358
Intangible and other assets 164,318 257,062 154,674
Goodwill 182,740 597,205 274,995
468,166 1,435,503 648,495
Liabiliries assumed:
Notes payable 5,231 1,674 8,819
Accounts payable 21,265 132,733 26,301
Accrued payrolls 13,410 10,954 8,209
Accrued raxes 1,537 10,268 433
QOther accrued liabilicies (10,440) 76,321 15,127
Long-term debt 9,954 229,463 6,415
Pensions and other
postretirement benefits (6,951) 16,833 7239
Deferred income taxes 41,905 67,644 17,383
Qcher liabilities 13,616 53,632
89,527 599,522 89,926
Net assets acquired $378,639  $835981  §538,569

DIVESTITURES - In August 2005, the Company divested o business unit which
manufactured custom-engineered buildings. In December 2004, the Compony
divested a business unit which developed and manufactured chemical car care
praducts and maintenance equipment. These businesses were part of the Other
Segment for segment reporting purposes. The following results of aperations for
these business units have been presented as discontinued operations for ol periods
presentes:

2006 2005
Nert sales $ 21,672 $ 201,776
Earnings before income taxes 1,517 24,538
Net income 1,131 18,979
Gain on disposal, net of taxes $ 33,760 % 52,547

The gain on disposal is net of taxes of $4,602 in 2006 and 516,914 in 2005.

in December 2005, the Company completed the divestiture of its Thermoplastics
division. Thermoplastics was part of the Industrinl Segment for segment reporting
putposes. The divestiture resulted in a loss of $11,018 (59,770 aftertox or $.08
per share} in 2006 and is reflected in (Gain) loss on disposal of assets in the
Consolidated Statement of Income. The results of aperations and net assets of
the divested business were immateriol to the consoliduted resulis of operations
and financial position of the Company.




note 3. Charges Related to Business Realignment

In 2007, the Company recorded a $19,402 charge (511,977 aftertox or $.09 per
share) for the costs to structure its businesses in light of current ond anficipated
customer demand. The Compony believes the realignment actions taken will
positively impact future results of operations, but will have no material effect on
liquidity ond sources and uses of capital. The charge primorily related to severance
costs, atiributable to approximately 735 employees in the Industriol Segment, 25
employees in the Aerospace Segment and 15 emgloyees in the Climate & Industril
{ontrols Segment os well s costs retated to the consolidation of manufoctusing
product lines. A portion of the severance costs have been paid with the remaining
payments expected fo be made by June 30, 2008. Of the pre-tax amount, $18,688
retates to the Industriat Segment, $384 relates to the Aerospace Segment and $330
relates to the Climate & Industial Controls Segment. The business realignment costs
are presented in the Consolidoted Statement of Income for 2007 in the following
captions: $15,016 in Cost of safes ond 54,386 in Selling, general and administrative
8xpenses.

In 2006, the Company recorded o $19,367 charge (512,042 ofterax or $.10 per
share) for the costs to structure its businesses in light of current ond anticipated
customer demand. The Company believes the realignment actions taken will
positively impact future results of operations, but will have no moterial effect on
liquidity and sources and uses of capital. The charge primarily related to severance
costs atfributable to epproximately 690 employees in the Industriol Segment, 5
employees in the Aerospace Segment and 340 empfoyees in the Climate & Industrial
Controls Segment. All required severance payments have been made. Of the pre-ax
amount, $15,673 relates to the Indusirial Segment, 573 relates to the Aerospace

- Segment and $3,621 relates to the Climate & Industrial Controls Segment. The
business realignment casts are presented primasily in the Cost of sales coption in
the Consolidated Statement of Income for 2006. In 2006, the Company recorded o
54,793 charge resulting from the pending sale of plant and equipment ot facilities
that have been closed. This charge is presented in the (Gein) loss on disposal of
assets caption in the Consolidated Statement of Income for 2006.

tn 2005, the Company recorded a $14,263 charge {58,900 aftertax or 5.08 per
share) for the costs to structure its businesses in light of current and anticipated
customer demand. The Company believes the reafignment octions taken will
positively impact future results of operations, but will have no materiol effect on
liquidity and sources and uses of capital. The charge primarily related to severance
costs attributable to approximately 600 employees in the [ndustriol Segment. All
required severance payments have been made. The business realignment costs are
presented primarity in the Cost of sales caption in the Consolidated Statement of
(ncome for 2005. A significont portion of the 2005 chorge relates to the dosure
of o manufacturing facifity in Hilden, Germany. The facility was acquired as part
of the Denison International acquisition. The decision to close the facility resulted
from the completion of the Company’s acquisition infegration analysis.

note 4. Income Taxes

income from continuing operations before income taxes was derived from the
following sources:

2007 2006 2005

United States $ 581,191  §528,084 3§ 439,717
Foreign 578,091 371,874 298,554
$ 1,159,282  §899,958 3§ 738,271

{DOLLARS [N THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

Income toxes include the following:

2007 2006 2005

Federal $ 203,387 § 178,162  § 108,182
Foreign 135,001 112,968 75,447
Stare and local 19,500 21,160 5,374
Deferred (28,652) (50,548) 16,102
$ 329,236 $ 261,682 $ 205,105

A reconciliation of the Campony’s effective income tox rate to the statutory Federal
rate follows;

2007 2006 2005
Statutory Federal income tax rate  35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State and local income raxes 1.0 19 6
Export tax benefit {-5) (9 (L.3)
Foreign tax rate difference (5.1) (5.00 (3.5)
Cash surrender of life insurance (.8) (5) (.4
Research tax credit {1.4) (.5) (2.6)
Other 2 (!
Effective income tax rate 28.4% 29.1% 27.8%

Deferred income texes are provided for the temporary differences between the
financial reporting basis and the tax basis of assets and liabilities. The differences
comprising the net deferred toxes shown on the Consolidoted Bolance Sheet at
June 30 were os follows:

2007 2006

Postretirement benefits $ 188,613 $ 145,712
Orther liabilities and reserves 92,544 86,431
Long-term contracts 8,253 9,813
Stock-based compensation 20,705 11,171
Operating loss carryforwards 42,299 31,297
Foreign tax credit carryforwards 7,887 9,634
Unrealized currency exchange gains

and losses 19,017 13,807
Valuation allowance (28,896) (7,391
Depreciation and amorrization (304,195) (287,933)
Inventory 18,491 18,156
Net deferred tax asset $ 64,718 $ 30,697
Change in net deferred tax asse:
Provision for deferred tax $ 28,652 $ 50,548
Items of other comprehensive

income (loss) 28,194 (69,191)
Acquisitions and other (22,825) (77.646)
Total change in net deferred tax $ 34,021 $(96,289)

At June 30, 2007, the Company hos recorded deferred tox assets of $42,29%
resutting from $131,781 in loss corryforwards. A valuation ollowonce has been
established due to the uncertainty of realizing certain operating and merger foss
carryforwards, o foreign copital loss corryforward, and certoin deferred fox assets
gssociated with other liabilities and reserves. The foreign capital loss corryforward
and some of the operating and merger loss carryforwards can be carried forward
indefinitely; others can be carried forword from one to 19 years. The increase in
the valugtion allewance in 2007 wos primarily due to an increase in operating
and mesger losses in certain foreign jurisdictions and a foreign capital loss.
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Provision has not been made for additional U.S. or foreign taxes on undistributed
earnings of certain international operatiens as those eomings will continue fo be
reinvested. It is not pracficable to estimate the additional taxes, including applicable
toreign withholding taxes, that might be payable on the eventual remittance of
such earnings.

Accumulated undistributed earnings of foreign operations reinvested in their
operations amounted to $948,867, $670,672 and $546,740, at June 30,
2007, 2006 and 2005, respactively.

note 5. Earnings Per Share

Eamings per share have been computed according to FASB Stotement No. 128,
“Earnings per Share.” Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted
averoge number of shores of common shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
eawnings per shore is computed using the weighted averoge number of common
shares and common share equivalents outstanding during the year. Common share
equivalents represent the dilutive effect of outstonding stock-hased owards. The
computafion of income from continuing aperations per share was as follows:

2007 2006 2005

Numerator:
Income from continuing
operations

$830,046  $0638,276  $ 533,166

Denominator:
Basic - weighted average
common shares 116,428,885 119,211,192 118,794,564
Increase in weighted average
from dilutive effecr
of exercise of
stock-based awards 1,901,042 1,672,990 1,654,442

Diluted - weighted average
common shares,
assuming exercise of

stock-based awards 118,329,927 120,884,182 120,449,006

Basic earnings per share

from continuing

operations $ 713 3 33 0§ 449
Diluted earnings per share

from continuing

operations $ 7.01 $ 528 3 443

For 2007, 2006 and 2005, 1.7 million, 1.% million, and 0.2 million common shares,
respectively, subiect o stock-bosed owords were excluded from the computation of -
dituted eamings per share from continuing operations because the effect of their
exercise would be anti-dilutive.

NotE 6. Inventories

Inventories valued on the lostn, first-out cost method were approximately 31% and
34%, respectively, of total inventories in 2007 ond 2006. The current cost of these
inventories exceads their voluation determined on the LIFD bosis by $209,923 in
2007 ond $193,270 in 2006. Progress poyments of $25,874 in 2007 ond $20,743
in 2006 are netted against inventories.

note 7. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Company conducts an annual impairment test as fequired by FASB Statement
No. 142. The Company uses a discounted cash flow analysis for purposes of esti-

moting the fair value of o reporting unit. The annual impairment tests performed

in 2007, 20086, and 2005 resulted in no impairment loss being recognized.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended June 30, 2007
e as follows:

Climate &
Industrial
Industrial  Aerospace Controls
Segment  Sepment Sepment Total
Balance
June 30,2006 $ 1,625,983 $ 87543 $296,932 §$ 2,010,458
Acquisitions 167,516 15,224 182,740
Foreign currency
translation 60,042 19 4,400 64,461
Goodwill
adjustments 3,300 159 {7,049) (3,590}
Balance

June 30,2007  $1,856,841 $87721 $309,507 $2,254,069

“Goadwill adjustments” primarily represent odjustments to the purchase price alloco-
tion during the twelve-month period subsequent to the acquisition date and primarily
involves the valuation of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

Intangible assets are amartized on o straighting method over their legal or
estimated useful life. The following summorizes the gross carrying value and
accumulated amortization for each major category of intangible asset:

June 30, 2007 2006

Gross carrying  Accumulated Gross carrying  Accumulated

amount _amortization amount _amortization

Patents $ 85255 % 29,149 $ 66,767 $22,289
Trademarks 193,595 27,110 133,576 13,289

Customer liscs
and other 446,273 73,257 351,366 45,036

Total $725,123 $ 129516  § 551,709 $ 80,614

Total intangible amortization expense in 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $45,842,
$33,544 and $15,857, respectively. The estimated amortization expense for the
five years ending June 30, 2008 through 2012 is $47 644, 546,029, 545,601,
544,704 and $43,200, respectively.

note 8. Financing Arrangements

The Company has a line of credit totaling $1,025,000 through a multi-cumrency
revolving credit agreement with o group of bonks, of which $896,200 was ovailable
at June 30, 2007. The Company has the right, no mare than once a year, to increase
the facility amount, in minimum increments of $25 millien up to @ maximum of
$1,250,000. The credit agreement expires October 2011, however, the Company has
the right to request o one-yeor extension of the expirotion date on an onnual basis.
A portion of the credit agreament supports the Company’s commercial paper note
prograr, which is rated A-1 by Standard & Poor’s, P-1 by Moady’s and F-1 by Fitch,
Inc. These ratings ore considered investment grade. The interest on bomowings is
based upon the terms of ench specific borrowing and is subject to market conditians.
The revolving credit agreement requires o facility fee of up to 5/100ths of one
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percent of the commitment per annum af the Company's present rating level. The
revolving credit agreement contains provisions that increase the facility fee of the
credir agreement in the event the Company’s redit ratings are lowered. A lowering of
the Company’s credit ratings would not limit the Company’s ability to use the credit
agreement nor would it occelerate the repayment of any outstanding berrowings.

The Company’s revolving credit agreement and indentures governing certain debt
agreements contain various covenants, the viofation of which would limit or preclude
the use of the agreement for future borrowings, or might occelerate the maturity of
the related outstanding borrowings covered by the indentures. At the Company’s
present rating level, the most restrictive covenant provides that the ratio of secured
debt to net tongible assets be less than 10 percent. As of June 30, 2007, the ratio
of secured debt to net tangible ossets was less than one pescent. The Company is in
complionce with all covengnts.

Notes payable are comprised of short-ferm lines of credit and borrawings from foreign
banks. At June 30, 2007, the Company had $357,333 in lines of credit from various
foreign boanks, of which $348,201 was ovailable. Most of these agreements are
renewed annually. The bolance ond weighted average interest rate of the Notes
payable at June 30, 2007 and 2006 were $136,365 and 5.4% ond $6,056 ond
5.2%, respectively.

The Company is authorized to sell up to $1,025,000 of short-ferm commerciat
poper notes, rated A1 by Standard & Poors, P-1 by Moody's and F-1 by Fifch, Inc.
At June 30, 2007 and 2006, there were no commercial paper notes outstanding. in
connection with an accelerated stock repurchase agreement, the Company bomrowed
$500 million through the issuance of commercial paper notes in August 2007.

nore 9. Debt
June 30, 2007 2006
Domestic:
Debentures
7.30%, due 2011 $ 100,000 § 100,000
Fixed rate medium-term notes
6.55% to 7.39%, due 2008-2019 170,000 195,000
Fixed rate senior notes
4.88%, due 2013 225,000 225,000
ESCP loan guarantee
6.34%, due 2009 18,725 30,878
Variable rate demand bonds
3.87%, due 2010-2025 20,035 20,035
Foreign:
Bank loans, including revalving
credit 1% to 10%,
due 2008-2017 14,246 24,087
Eure Bonds
3.5%, due 2011 270,700 255,840
4.125%, due 2016 270,700 255,840
Japanese Yen credit facility
Libor plus 20 bps, due 2012 48,732
Other long-term debr,
including capiralized leases 10,797 18,764
Total long-term debt 1,148,935 1,125,444
Less long-term debr payable
wirhin one year 59,019 65,983

$1,089,916 § 1,059,461

Long-term debt, net

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

During 2007, the Company entered into o five-year opanese Yen (JPY) 6 billion
credit facility. The credit fadility bears inferest of LIBOR plus 20 basis points and any
borrowings are due to be repaid in March 2012. The Company borrowed the full IPY
6 billion and used the funds to reduce the level of the Company’s commercial paper
borrowings.

Principal amounts of Lang-term debt payable in the five years ending june 30,
2008 through 2012 ore $59,019, $13,034, $46,675, $370,967 and $48,900,
respectively. The corrying value of the Company’s Long-term debt (excluding leases)
was 51,147,064 and $1,123,234 ot June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and
waos estimated to have o fair volue of $1,086,766 ond 51,060,512, at June 30,
2007 and 2006, respectively. The fair value of the Long-term debt wos estimated
using discounted cash flow analyses based on the Company’s current incrementol
borrawing rate for similar types of borrowing arangements. At the Company's
present rating level, some of the debt agreements include o fimitation on the
Company’s ratio of secured debt to net tangible assets.

ESOP LOAN GUARANTEE - In 1999 the Company’s Employee Stock Ownership Plon
(ESOP) was leveraged when the ESOP Trust borrowed $112,000 and used the
praceeds to purchase 3,055,413 shares of the Company’s commen stock from the
Company’s treosury. The loan is unconditionally guaronteed by the Company and
therefore the unpaid bolance of the borrowing is reflected on the Consolidated
Bolance Sheet as Long-term debt. A corresponding amount representing Unearned
compensotion is recorded as a deduction from Shareholders” equity.

LEASE COMMITMENTS - Future minimum renfal commitments os of June 30, 2007,
under noncancelable operating leoses, which expire at vorious dates, ore os follows:
2008 - $64,385; 2009 - $46,048; 2010 - $29,685; 2011 - $18,204; 2012 -
$12,323 and after 2012 - $51,377.

Rentol expensa in 2007, 2006 and 2005 was 586,999, 576,828 and 64,521,
respectively.

Nore 10. Refirement Benefits

PENSIONS — The Campany has noncontributory defined benefit pension plans
covering eligible employees, including certain employees in foreign countries. Plons
for most salaried employees provide pay-reluted benefits based an years of service,
Plans for hourly employees generally provide benefits hased on flok-dollar amounts
and years of service. The Company uses o June 30 measurement date for a majority
of its pension plans. The Company alse hos contractual orrangements with certoin
key employees which provide for supplementol retirement benefits. In general, the
Company’s policy is to fund these plans based on lega! requirements, tax consid:
erations, local practices and investment opportunities. The Company olso sponsors
defined contribution plans and parficipates in govemment-sponsored programs in
certain foreign countries.

Prios to the adoption of FASB Statement No. 158, accounting rules required that the
Company recagnize o liability if the occumulated benefit obligation exceeded the fair
value of plan assets. The net of tox effect of recording the minimum pension linhility
on shareholders” equity was an increase of $221,546 and $167,008 in 2007 ond
2006, respectively and a decrease of $154,377 in 2005.
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A summary of the Company’s defined benefit pension plans follows:

Benefit cost 2007 2006 2005
Service cost $ 79136 % 79376 $ 64,901
Interest cost 151,030 134,489 129,609
Expected return

on plan assets (175,170} (148,300) (134,397)
Net amortization and

deferral and other 70,976 88,909 58,274

Net periodic benefit cost $125,972 % 154,474 $ 118,387

Change in benefit obligation 2007 2006

Benefit obligarion

at beginning of year $2,660,150  $2,593,744

Service cost 79,136 79,376
Interest cost 151,030 134,489
Actuarial (gain) (105,183)  (112,959)
Benefits paid (126,933) (105,825)
Plan amendments 9,617 6,833
Acquisitions 28,019 28,729
Foreign currency translation and other 47,494 35,763

Benefit obligation at end of year $2,743,330  $2,660,150

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets

ar beginning of year $2,048,338  $ 1,749,810

Acrual gain on plan assets 311,390 225,987
Employer contributions 207,331 121,193
Benefits paid (122,378) (95,71%)
Acquisitions 17,601 19,489
Foreign currency translation and other 38,137 27,374

Fair value of plan assets at end of year ~ $2,500,419  $2,048,338

Funded status

Plan assets {under) benefit obligation $ (242,911) % (611,812}

Unrecognized net actuarial loss 723,281
Unrecognized prior service cost 84,776
Unrecognized inirial nec (asset) (180)

$ (242,911} $ 196,065

Net amount rccognized

Amounts recognized on the Consalidated Balance Sheet

Investments and other assers $ 11,808 $ 431,058
Other accrued liabilities (10,863)

Pensions and other postretirement benefits  (243,856) (680,326)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 445,333

$ (242,911) $ 196,065

Net amount recognizcd

Amounts recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive (Loss)

The occumulated benefit ebligation for oll defined benefit plans wos $2,463,208
and 52,389,579 ot June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The projected benefit
obligation, accumulated benefit obligation, and fair value of plan assets for pension
plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets were $834,143,
$760,428 and $589,471, respectively, at June 30, 2007, and 52,612,299,
$2,348,100 ond $1,998,449, respectively, at June 30, 2006.

The Company expects to contribute approximately $36 million to its defined benefit
pension plans in 2008. Estimated future benefit psyments in the five years ending
June 30, 2008 through 2012 are $117,250, $119,919, $126,57%, $135,586 and
$143,932, respectively and $850,652 in the aggregate for the five years ending
June 30, 2013 through June 30, 2017.

The assumptions used fo measure net periodic benefit cost for the Company’s
significant defined benefit plons are:

2007 2006 2005
LS. defined benefic plans
Discount rate 6.0% 5.25% 6.25%
Average increase
in compensation 4.7% 4.7% 4.9%
Expected return
on plan assets 8.75% 8.75% 8.25%

Non-U.S. defined benefit plans
Discount rate 225t 6.0% 2t 535% 21w006.25%
Average increase
in compensation
Expected return on
plan assets 1t0775% 1t 775% 1tw7.75%

1 to £.25% 1 to 4% 1 1o 4%

The assumptions used to meoswre the benefit obligation for the Company's
significant defined benefit plans are:

2007 2006
U.S. defined benefie plans
Discount rate 6.30% 6.0%
Average increase in compensation 4.7% 4.7%

Non-U.S. defined benefit plans
Discount rate

22510 6.3% 2.25 10 55%

Average increase in compensation 1w 4.25% 1 104.23%

The discount rate assumption is based on current rates of high-quality long-term
corporate bonds over the same estimated time period that benefit payments will be
required to be mode. The expected return on plan assets assumption is based on the
weighted-averoge expected retum of the various asset classes in the plans’ portfolio.
The asset class return is developed using historical asset return performance os well
os current market conditions such as inflation, interest rates and equity market
performonce.

Net actuarial loss $ 435,401 The weighted-overage alfocation of the mojority of the assets related to defined

Prior setvice cost 82,157 benefit plans is as faflows:

Transition (asset) {160) 2007 2006

Amounr recognized § 517,398 Equity securities 66% 66%

The presentation of the emounts recognized an the Consolidated Balance Sheet and geit securities 222:“ 3312?

in Accumizlated Qther Comprehensive (Loss) is before the effect of income taxes. rher ° ’
100% 100%

The estimated amount of net actuarial loss, prior service cost ond transifion asset
thet will be amortized from occumulated other comprehensive {loss) into net
perfodic benefit pension cost in 2008 is 535,887, $12,501 and $64, respactively.
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The investment strategy for the defined benefit pension plan ossets focuses on
achieving prudent achvorial funding ratios while maintaining acceptable levels of risk.
This strotegy requires an investment portfolio that is broadly diversified across various
asset closses and investment monagers. The current weighted-average target asset
allocation is 62% equity securities, 33% debt securities and 5% other. At June 30,
2007 and 2006, the plars’ ossets included Company stock with market values of
S$117.395 and $93,043, respectively,

EMPLOYEE SAVINGS PLAN - The Company sponsors an employee stock ownership
plan (ESOP} as part of ifs existing savings and investment 401(k) plon. The ESOP
is available to eligible domestic employees. Parker Hannifin commean stock is used
to match contributions made by employees to the ESOP up to o maximum of 4.0
percent of an employes's annual comgensation. A breokdown of shares held by the
ESOP is o5 follows:

2007 2006 2005

Allocared shares 7,745,486 8,280,848 9,558,612

Suspense shares 414,432 704,094 1,004,423
Toral shares held

by the ESOP 8,159.918 8,984,942 10,563,035

Fair value of suspense shares  § 40,577 $ 54,638 $ 62,284

In 1999, the ESOP was leveraged and the loan was unconditionally guoranteed by
the Company. The Company’s motching contribution and dividends on the shares
held by the ESOP ore vsed to repay the loon, and shares are released from the
suspense account o3 the principal ond interest are poid. The unreleased portion of
the shares in the ESOP suspense account is not considered outstanding for purposes
of earnings per share computations. Company contributions to the ESOP. recorded as
compensation and intesest expense, were $51,647 in 2007, 547,533 in 2006 ond
540,396 in 2005. Dividends earned by the suspense shares and inferest income
within the ESOP totaled $1,031 in 2007, $1,017 in 2006 and $942 in 2005.

The Company has a refirement income account (RIA) within the employee savings
plan. The RIA replaces the definad benefit pension plan for employees hired affer
April 1, 2004 ot locations that previously offered a solary-bosed formula under the
pension plan. Existing employees at April 1, 2004 who were already under the
solary-bosed formula in the pension plan were given the choice to stay in the defined
benefit pension plan or parficipate in the RIA. The Company makes o contributien

to the parficipant’s RIA account each year, the amount of which is bused on the
participant’s age and years of service. Porticipants do not contribute to the RiA.
Company contributions to the RIA were $9,145 in 2007, 6,479 in 2006 and
2,258 in 2005.

| In addition to shares within the ESOP, os of June 30, 2007 employees have elected
~ toinvestin 1,942,756 shares of common stock within the Company Stock Fund of
the Parker Refirement Savings Plan.

OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS - The Company provides postretirement medicol
and life insurance benefits to certain retirees ond eligible dependents. Most plans
are contributory, with retiree contributions adjusted annually. The plons ore unfunded
and pay stoted percentages of covered medically necessory expenses incurred by
refirees, ofter subtrocting payments by Medicare or other providers and ofter stated
deductibles have been met. For most plans, the Company has established cost max-
imurns to more effectively control future medical costs. The Compony has reserved
the right to change or efiminate these benefit plans.

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS}

Certoin employees are covered under benefit provisions that include prescription drug
coverage for Medicare eligible refirees. The impact of the subsidy received under the
Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 an the
Company’s other postretirement benefits was immaterial.

A summary of the Company’s other postretirement benefit plans follows:

Benefit cost 2007 2006 2005
Service cost $ 1,656 $ 2059 § 1,885
Interest cost 5,699 5,559 6,301
Ner amortization and deferral (579) 261 71
Net periodic benefir cost $6,776 § 7879 § 8,257
Change in benefit obligation 2007 2006
Benefit obligation

at beginning of year $ 101,245 3 119969
Service cost 1,656 2,059
Interest cost 5,699 5,559
Acruarial (gain) (5,223) (17,763)
Benefits paid (7,086) (6,816)
Acquisitions and other {1,763)
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 96,291 $ 101,245
Funded status
Benefit obligation in excess of plan assets ~ $ (96,291)  § (101,245)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 9,773
Unrecognized prior service (credic) {3,788)
Ner amount recognized $ (96,291} $ (95,260)
Amounts recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheet
Pensions and other

postretirement benefits $ (96,291) $ (95,260)

Amounts recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive (Loss)

Nert actuarial loss $ 4,387
Prior service (credit) (3,046)
Amount recognized $ 1,341

The amount of prior service {credif) that wilt be amortized from accumulated other
comprehensive {loss) into net periodic postretirement cost in 2008 is 5742.

The assumptions used to meosure the net periodic benefit cost for postretirernent
benefit obligations are:

2007 2006 2005
Discount rate 6.0% 5.25% 6.25%
Current medical cost trend rate  10.2% 10.4% 9.8%
Ultimate medical cost trend rate 5% 5% 5%
Medical cost trend rate decreases
to ultimate in year 2014 2014 2012

The discount rate assumption used to meosure the benefit obligation was 6.23%
in 2007 and 6.0% in 2006.

Estimated future benefit payments for other postretirement benefits in the five
years ending June 30, 2008 through 2012 are 57,066, 56,861, 56,980, 57,191
and $7.199, respectively ond $36,365 in the aggregate for the five years ending
June 30, 2013 through June 30, 2017.
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A one percentage point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would hove
the following effects:

1% Increase 1% Decrease

Effect on total of service and interest
COSt components

Effect on postretirement benefir
obligation

$ 786 $ (636)

$ 8,502 $(7,467)

OTHER - The Company has established nonqualified deferred compensation programs,
which permit officers, directors and certain management employees annually fo elect
to defer a portion of their compensofion, on o pre-tax basis, until their retirement.
The retirement benefit to be provided is based on the amaunt of compensation
deferred, Company motch, and eamings on the deferrals. Deferred compansation
expense wos $34,284 518,945 and 13,622 in 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

The Company has invested in corporate-owned ife insurance policies to assist in
meeting the obligation under these programs. The policies are held in a rabbi trust
and are recorded as assels of the Compony.

Note 11, Shareholders’ Equity

Common Shares 2007 2006 2005
Balance July 1 $ 60342 § 60,219 $ 59,856

Shares issued under stock
incentive plans

(2006 - 246,615;
2005 - 726,224) 123 363

Balance Junc 30 $ 60)342 $ 60;342 $ 60)219

Additional Capital

Balance July 1 $ 510,869 % 478,219 $ 451,891
Stock option
exercise activity (70,432) (32,243) 1,385
Stock-based
compensation expense 33,203 33,448
Tax benefit of equity awards 26,547 20,406 16,520
Restricted srock (surrendered)
issued {260) 603 214
Shares related ro ESOP 12,340 10,436 8,209
Deferred compensation (28)
Balance June 30 $ 512,239 § 510,869 $ 478,219

Retained Earnings

Balance July 1 $ 3,916,412 £3,352,888 §2,840,787
Net income 830,046 673,167 604,692
Cash dividends paid

on common shares,
net of tax benefits (121,263) (109,643) (92,591)

Balance June 30 $ 4,625,195 §$ 3,916,412 $3,352,888

Unecarned Compensation Related co ESOP
Balance July 1 $ (25,809) $

Unearned compensation

relared to ESOP debt

guarantee

Balance June 30 $

(36,818) $ (48,868)

10,617 11,009
{15192) § (25,809

12,050
$ (36,818)

Deferred Compensation

Related to Stock Options 2007 2006 2005

Balance July 1 $ 2,347 0§ 2347 0§ 2347
Deferred compensation (78)

Balance June 30 $ 2,269 % 2,347 % 2,347

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Laoss}

Balance July 1 $ (194,819) § (470,964} $ (311,710)
Foreign currency rranslarion 119,582 103,842 13,138
Net unrealized gain (loss) 5,153 (18,024)
Net realized loss 236 142 9
Minimum pension liability

prior to adoption of

FAS 158 221,546 167,008 (154,377}
Adjustment recognized

upon adoption of

FAS 158 (259,166)

Balance June 30 $(112,621) § (194,819) $(470,964)

Common Stock in Treasury

Balance July 1 $ (28,139) $ (45744} $ (11,849)
Shares purchased at cost

(2007 - 5,449,327;

2006 - 742,100;

2005 - 1,000,000} (433,049) (52,409} (61,781}
Shares issued under

stock incentive plans

(2007 - 1,072,316;

20006 - 979,464;

2005 - 413,582} 83,844 61,530 23,779
Restricred stock issued 16,670 8,484 4,107
Deferred compensation 107

Balance June 30 $(360,567) §$ (28,139} § (45,744)

Foreign currency translation is net of tax of $8,841, 547,864, ond $8,080 in 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively. Induded in the 2006 tax amount for foreign currency
translation is $38.8 million related to prior year deferred toxes assaciated with the
retirement of the Euro Notes in November 2005. Net unrealized goin (foss) is net
of tax of $3,101 and $10,841 in 2006 and 2005, respectively. Net reolized loss is
net of tax of $148, $107 and $7 in 2007, 2006 ond 2005, respectively. Minimum
pension liahility is net of tox of $131,065, $110,068 and $93,127 in 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively, Adjusiment recognized upon adoption of FAS 158 is net of
tax of $156,711 in 2007.

Shares surrendered upon exerdise of stock options; 2007 - 795,194; 2006 - 680,110;
2005- 655,385.

SHARE REPURCHASES - The Company is authorized fo repurchase an amount of
commen shares each fiscal year equal to the greater of 5 million shares or five
percent of the shares qutstanding as of the end of the prior fiscel year. The Company
repurchased 5,449 327 shores at an average price of $79.47 per share during the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. Repurchases ore funded primarily from operating
cosh flows, and the shares are initially held os treasury stock. In August 2007, the
Company’s Boord of Directors authorized the eccelerated purchase of $500 million
of the Company’s common shares. This autherization is in addition ta the Company’s
previously anngunced share repurchase program. The Company has entered into

an agreement with Morgan Stanley whereby the Company will purchase an initial
number of common shares in exchange for $500 million. Morgan Stanley will
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purchase an equivalent number of the Company's common shares in the open market
over a period of up to four months, and at the end of that periad, additional shares
may be delivered fo the Company bosed on the volume-weighted average price of
the Company’s commeon shares during the same period, subject to o cop ond a floor
as determined according to the terms of the agreement.

Nore 12, Stock Incentive Plans

STOCK-BASED AWARDS - The Company’s stock incentive plans provide for the gront-
ing of nonqualified options and steck appreciation rights (SARs} to officers and key
employees of the Company. The nonqualified options llow the recipient to purchase
shares of common stock at a price nat less than 100 percent of the fair markst value
of the stock on the date the stock-based awards are granted. Qutstanding aptions
and SARs are exercisable primarily from two to three years after the date of gront
and expire no more than ten years ofter grant. The Company satisfies stock option
and SAR exercises by issuing common shores out of treasury, which have been
repurchased pursuant to the Company’s share repurchase program described in

Note 11, or through the issuance of previously unissued commen sheres.

On July 1, 2005, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB Statement No. 123
(revised 2004) ond elected to use the modified prospective transition method.
The madified prospective transition method requires that compensation cost be
recagnized in the financial statements for all awards granted after the date of
adoption as well os for existing owards for which the requisite service has not been
rendesed as of the dote of adoption and requires that prior periods not be restated.
Prior 16 the adoption of FASB Statement No. 123 {revised 2004}, the Company
used the infrinsic-value based method to account for stock-based awards and mode
. no charges against eqmings with respect to awerds granted as the grant price
equaled the market price of the underlying comman shares on the date of grant.

During 2007 and 2008, the Company recognized stock-hased compensation expense
of $33,203 (521,280 oftertox or $.18 per basic ond diluted share) ond $33,448
{521,756 aftertax or $.18 per bosic and diluted share), respectively.

The Company derives a tax deduction measured by the excess of the market volue
over the grant price of the date stock-bused awards are exercised. The reluted tox
benefit is credited to Additional capital os the Company is currently in o windfall
tax benefit position.

The fair volues for the significant stock-based awards granted in 2007, 2006 ond
2005 were estimated of the date of grant using a Black:Scholes option pricing
model with the following weighted-average ossumptions:

2007 2006 2005
Risk-free inrerest rate 4.7% 4.2% 3.5%
Expected life of award 5.1 yrs 54 yrs 4.2 yrs
Expected dividend yield of stock  1.5% 1.6% 1.7%
Expected volatility of stock 30.2% 33.1% 32.7%
Weighted average fair value $23.24 $21.29 $14.97

The expected life of the award wos derived by refering to actual exercise experience.
The expected volatility of stock was derived by referring to changes in the Company’s
historicol common stock prices over a timeframe similar to the expacted life of the
award. The Company has no reason fo believe that future stack volafility is likely ta
materially differ from historical volatility.

{DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

Stock-based oword octivity during 2007 is as fellows (aggregate intrinsic volug in
millions):

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining  Aggregate
Number Exercise  Conrracrual Inrrinsic
of Shares Price Term Value
Qutstanding
June 30, 2006 7,860,451  $ 50,24
Granted 1,978,724 76.86
Exercised (1,867,840) 45,87
Canceled (43,857) 70.47
Cutstanding
June 30,2007 7,927,478  $ 57.80 6.7 years $317.3
Exercisable
June 30,2007 5,060,220  $ 49.02 5.6 years $247.4

A summary of the status ond chonges of shares subject to stock-based awards and
the related averoge price per shase foflows:

Weighted-average

Number of Grant dare

Shares Fair Value

Nonvested June 30, 2006 2,350,894 $ 19.11
Granted 1,978,724 23.24
Yested (1,424,369) 17.94
Canceled (37,991) 21.42
Nonvested June 30, 2007 2,867,258 $2251

At June 30, 2007, $25,862 of expanse with respect to nonvested stock-bused
awards has yat to be recognized ond will be amortized into expense over a weighted-
average period of approximately 18 months. The total fair value of shares vested
during 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $25,554, 529,784 and $31,597, respectively.

Information related to stock-based awards exercised during 2007, 2006 and 2005
is as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Net cash proceeds $ 40,265 $ 52,879 $ 37,453
Intrinsic value 81,844 47,401 51,387
Income tax benefit 23,441 20,516 16,391

RESTRICTED STOCK ~ Restricted stock was issued under the Company’s 2003 Stack
Incentive Program to certain key employees under the Compeny’s 2004-05-06,
2003-04-05 and 2002-03-04 Long Tesm Incentive Plans (LTIP). Value of the pay-
ments wos set af the market value of the Company's commen stock on the date of
issuance. Shares were eomed and owarded, and on estimated value wos occrued,
based upen attuinment of criteria specified in the LTIP over the cumulative years of
each 3-year Pln. Plon participants ore entitled to cosh dividends and to vote their
respective shares, but the shores are restricted as to tronsferability for three years
following issuonce.

Restricted Shares for LTIP Plan 2007 2006 2005
Number of shares issued 212,220 136,922 66,393
Average share value

on dace of issuance $ 74.63 $ 65.65 $ 60.52
Total value $ 15,838 $ 8,989 $4,018




/ NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Under the Company's 2005-06-07 LTIP  payout of shares of restricted stock
from the Company’s 2003 Stock Incentive Progrom will be issued to certain key
employees in 2008. The bolonce of the 2005-06-07 LTIP payout will be made as
deferred cash compensation (if elected by the participant) or in cash. The total
payout, valued at 528,425 has been accrued over the three years of the plan,

n 2007, 9,000 shares of restricted stack were issued to certain non-emgployee
members of the Board of Directors. These shares are restricted to transferability for
three years following issuance. In addition, non-employee members of the Board of
Directors have been given the apportunity to receive all or o portion of their fees in
the form of restricted stock. These shares vest ratably, on an annyal basis, over the
term of office of the director. In 2007, 2006 and 2005, 9,663, 6,778 and 3,132
shares, respectively, were issuad in lieu of directors’ fees. During 2006, 2,442
shares of the restricted stock were surrendered upon the death of o director.

At June 30, 2007, the Compony hod 14,496,162 common shares reserved for
issuance in connection with its stock incentive plans.

Note 1. Shareholders’ Protection Rights Agreement

On January 25, 2007, the Board of Directors of the Compony declared o dividend of
ane Shareholders’ Right for each common share outstonding on February 17, 2007
in relotion to the Company’s Shareholders Protection Rights Agreement. As of June
30, 2007, 116,159,220 common shares were reserved for issuance under this
Agreement. Under certain conditians involving acquisition of, or an offer for, 15
percent or more of the Compony’s common shares, all holders of Shareholders’
Rights would be enfitled to purchase one common share at an exexcise price currently
set ot $240. In eddition, in certain circumstances, all holders of Shareholders’ Rights
(other than the acquiring entity) would be entitled to purchase a number of common
shares equal to twice the exercise price, or at the option of the Board, to exchange
each Shareholders’ Right for ane comman share. The Shareholders’ Rights remain

in existence untit February 17, 2017, unless extended by the Board of Directors or
earlier redeemed (t one cent per Sharekolders’ Right), exercised or exchanged
under the terms of the agreement. In the event of on unfriendly business combing-
tion ottempt, the Shareholders” Rights will cause substantial dilufion fo the person
attempting the business combination. The Shareholders’ Rights should not interfere
with any merger or other business combination that is in the best inferest of the
Company and its shareholders since the Shareholders” Rights may be redeemed.

note 14. Research and Development

Research and development costs amounted to $253,091 in 2007, $203,702 in
2006 ond $164,229 in 2005. These omounts include both costs incurred by the
Company related to independent research and development initiatives as well as
costs incurred in connection with research and development contracts, Costs incurred
in connection with reseorch ond development contracts amounted to $40,894 in
2007, $37.532 in 2004 ond $34,757 in 2005. These costs are included in the
total iesearch and development cost for each of the respective years.

nore 15. Contingencies

The Company is involved in variovs litigotion arising in the normal course of business,
including proceedings based on product liability doims, workers’ compensation claims
and alleged violations of various environmental laws. The Company is self-insured
in the United States for health care, workers” compensation, general liobility ond
product liahility up fo predetermined amaunts, abeve which third party insurance

gpplies. Management reqularly reviews the probable outcome of these proceedings,
the expenses expected to be incurred, the availability and limits of the insurance
covernge, ond the established accruals for liabilities. While the cutcome of pending
proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, monogement believes that any
liabilities that may result from these praceedings will not have o material adverse
effect on the Compony's liquidity, financial condition o results of operations.

On April 27, 2007, a grand jury in the Southern District of Florido issued o subpoena
to the Company’s subsidiary, Parker ITR. The subpoena requires the production of
documents, in particular documents related to communications with competitors and
customers related fo Parker TR’ marine oil and gas hose business. The Company

is responding to this subpoena. On May 7, 2007, the Jopan Fair Trade Commission
{JFTC) requested that Parker ITR appaint an agent related fo an investigation of
marine hase suppliers. Porker 1TR appointed such an agent by gower of artomey,
Parker IR hos also been required to submit @ report to the JFTC on specific topics.
The Company and Parker ITR continue to cooperate with the IFTC. On May 15, 2007,
the European Commission issued o Request for Information to the Company and

its subsidiary, Parker ITR. After the Compony and Parker ITR filed o response, the
European Commission requested additional information. The Company ond Parker TR
confinue to cooperate with the European Commission. In addition, there ore currently
four class action lawsuits pending in the Souther District of Florida ond one in the
Southern District of New York alleging that the Company, Parker ITR ond o number
of other defendants engaged in violations of Section 1 of the Shermon Act. The dass
action complaints allege that Parker TR and other defendants, for a period of af least
gight years, conspired with compefitors in unreasonable restraint of trade fo artificially
raise, fix, maintain or stobilize prices, rig bids and allocate markets and customers for
marine oil ond gas hose in the United States. In three coses, a summons has been
issued for Parker TR, but service has not yet been effected. The Company, which is
only named in one case in the Southem District of Florida, was served on July 13,
2007 ond hod filed its answer denying the allegations. At the current stage of the
investigations and lawsuits, the Company is unable to reasonably estimate the
potentiol loss or range of loss, if any, arising from such investigations and lowsuits.

ENVIRONMENTAL - The Company is currently responsible for environmental
remediation at 34 manufacturing focilities presently or formerly operated by the
Company and has been named os a “potentially responsible party,” along with
other companies, at one off-site woste disposal focility and three regional sites.

As of June 30, 2007, the Company hos o reserve of $17,833 for environmental
matters, which are probable and reasonobly estimable. This reserve is recorded
hased upon the best estimate of costs to be incurred in light of the progress made
in determining the magnitude of remediation costs, the fiming ond extent of reme-
dial actions required by governmeatal authorities and the amount of the Company’s
fiaility in proportion to other responsible parties. This reserve is ner of 52,555 for
discounting, primarily ot a 4.5 percent discount rate, a portion of the costs at 32
|ocetions to operate and maintain remediation freatment systems os well as gouge
treatment system effectiveness through menitoring and sampling over periods up
to 30 years.

The Company’s estimated total liability for the above mentioned sifes ronges from
o minimum of $17.833 ta a maximum of $73,148. The largest range for any one
site is approximately $7.9 million. The actual casts to be incurred by the Compony
will be dependent on final determination of remedial action required, negotiations
with federal ond state agencies, changes in ragulatory requirements and technology
innovation, the effectiveness of remedial technologies employed, the ability of other
responsible parties to pay, and any insurance or third party recoveries.
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NotE 16. Stock Split

On August 16, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized a 3-sharesfor-2

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

split of the Company’s cemmon shares, payable on October 1, 2007 to shoreholders

of record os of September 17, 2007. The share numbers and per share amounts

disclosed in the Consalidoted Financial Stotements and Notes fo the Consalidoted
Financigl Stotements hove not been retrooctively adjusted to give effect to the stock

split. Presented to the right are unaudited pro forma basic and diluted eomings per

shore amounts after giving effect for the stock split.

note 17. Quarterly Information (Unaudited)

{Unaudited) 2007 2006 2005
Pro forma basic earnings
Income from continuing
$4.75 $3.57 $299
Discontinued operations 19 40
Basic earnings per share $4.75 $3.76 $3.39
Pro forma diluted earnings
Income from continuing
$ 4.68 $3.52 $295
Discontinued operations 19 A0
Diluted earnings per share  $ 4.68 $371 $3.3

The unaudited pro forma impact of the stock split on the balonce sheet at fure 30,
2007 is an increase in Common shares by $30 million with an offsetting reduction
to Addifional capitol.

2007 Ist 2nd 3rd 4th Toral
Net sales $2,551,573 $2,511,152 $2,780,969 $2,874,365 $10,718,059
Gross profit 604,215 573,145 617,141 650,609 2,445,110
Net income 210,584 192,967 209,309 217,186 830,046
Diluted earnings

per share 1.75 1.64 1.78 1.84 7.01
2006 (a) 1se 2nd 3rd 41h Total
Net sales $2,113,551 $2,157,537 $2,498,068 $2,616,732 $ 9,385,888
Gross profit 457,798 451,854 545,877 562,741 2,018,270
Income from continuing

operations 143,848 129,024 177,523 187,881 638,276
Net income 172,732 129,024 177,523 193,888 673,167

-~ Diluted earnings per share

from continuing operations 1.19 1.07 1.46 1.55 5.28
Net diluted earnings

per share 1.43 1.07 1.46 1.59 5.57

Eamings per shore amounts are computed independently for each of the quarters presented, therefore, the sum of the quarterly earnings per share amounts may not equal

the total computed for the yeor.

{0)  Net income for the first quarter indudes an aftertox gain of $27,753 (5.23 per diluted share) related to the divestiture of o business. Net income for the fourth quarter
includes an ofter-tax gain of $6,007 (5.04 per diluted share) resulting from additional accounting adjusiments related to the gain on the divestiture of o business.

wore 18. Stock Prices and Dividends (Unaudited)

(In dollars) Ist 2nd 3rd 4th Full Year
2007 High $£78.95 £88.00 $88.19 $103.43 $103.43
Low 69.70 76.73 75.62 85.54 69.70
Dividends 260 .260 260 260 1.040
2006 High $68.65 $70.55 $£83.39 $86.99 $86.99
Low 60.31 60.73 65.16 71.14 G0.31
Dividends 230 230 230 .230 920
2005 High $59.42 $78.42 $76.23 $62.98 $78.42
Low 53.14 58.65 59.12 56.80 53.14
Dividends 190 190 200 .200 780

Common Stock Listing: New York Stock Exchange, Stock Symbol PH
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ELEVEN-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2007 2006 2005 2004
Net sales $ 10,718,059 $ 9,385,888 $ 8,068,805 $ 6,887,596
Cost of sales 8,272,949 7,367,618 6,391,477 5,577,888
Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,226,861 1,036,646 860,278 765,570
Goodwill impairment loss 1,033
Interest expense 83,414 75,763 66,869 73,144
Income taxes 329,236 261,682 205,105 140,871
Income - continuing operations 830,046 638,276 533,166 332,085
Net income 830,046 673,167 604,692 345,783
Basic earnings per share - conrinuing eperations 7.13 5.35 4.49 2.82
Diluted earnings per share - continuing operations 7.01 5.28 4.43 279
Basic earnings per share 7.13 5.65 5.09 2.94
+ Diluted earnings per share s 7.01 $ 5.57 $ 5.02 3 291
Average number of shares outstanding - Basic 116,429 119,211 118,795 117,708
Average number of shares outstanding - Dilured 118,330 120,884 120,449 119,006
Cash dividends per share $ 1.040 $ 920 $ 780 $ 760
Net income as a percent of net sales 7.7% 7.2% 7.5% 5.0%
Return on average assets 10.0% 9.0% 9.3% 5.7%
Return on average equity 18.5% 17.8% 19.1% 12.6%
Book value per share $ 40.71 $ 35.46 $ 28.14 3 25.24
Working capiral $ 1,460,930 $ 1,457,873 § 1,454,883 $ 1,260,036
Ratio of current assets to current liabilities 1.8 19 2.1 2.0
Plant and equipment, net $ 1,736,372 $ 1,693,794 $ 1,581,348 $ 1,574,988
Total assets 8,441,413 8,173,432 6,860,703 6,194,701
Long-term debr 1,089,916 1,059,461 938,424 953,796
Shareholders’ equity $ 4,711,665 $ 4,241,203 $ 3,340,147 $ 2,982,454
Debt to debe-equity percent 21.4% 21.1% 22.5% 24.9%
Depreciation $ 245,058 $ 245,681 $ 245,206 $ 239,106
Capital expenditures $ 237,827 $ 198,113 $ 154,905 $ 138,27
Number of employees 57,338 57,073 50,019 47,433
Number of shares outstanding at year-end 115,745 119,611 118,689 118,168
NET SALES NET INCOME DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
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{DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
$ 6,222,452 $ 6,149,122 $ 5,979,604 $ 5,383,618 $ 4,986,696 $ 4,658,229 $ 4,113,339
5,165,523 5,116,570 4,728,156 4,186,850 3,897,266 3,576,198 3,175,246
687,455 686,485 679,963 575,906 550,681 532,134 475,180
39,516
81,249 82,484 95,775 59,183 63,697 52,787 46,659
97,246 87,886 187,391 193,955 167,193 180,762 150,828
189,362 130,150 340,792 368,232 310,501 319,551 274,039
196,272 130,150 340,792 368,232 310,501 319,551 274,039
1.63 1.13 2.98 3.34 2.85 2.88 2.46
1.62 1.12 2.96 3.31 2.83 2.85 2.44
1.69 1.13 2.98 3.34 2.85 2.88 2.46
$ 1.68 $ 1.12 $ 2.96 $ 3.31 $ 2.83 $ 2.85 $ 2.44
116,382 115,409 114,305 110,331 108,800 110,869 111,602
116,895 116,061 115,064 111,245 109,679 111,959 112,518
$ 740 5 720 $ 700 $ .G80 % .640 $ .600 $ 506
3,29 2.1% 5.7% 6.8% 6.2% 6.9% 6.7%
3.4% 2.3% 6.8% 8.8% 8.6% 9.8% 92.3%
7.7% 5.1% 14.1% 17.7% 17.6% 19.8% 18.7%
$ 21.63 $ 22.26 $ 21.99 £ 20.31 $ 17.03 $ 15.32 $ 13.87
$ 950,286 $ 875,781 $§ 783,233 $ 966,810 $ 1,020,171 $ 791,305 $ 783,550
1.7 1.6 1.6 1.8 2.4 1.8 2.1
$ 1,641,532 $ 1,696,965 $ 1,548,688 $ 1,340,915 $ 1,200,869 $ 1,135,225 $ 1,020,743
5,938,209 5,752,583 5,337,661 4,646,299 3,705,888 3,524,821 2,998,946
966,332 1,088,883 857,078 701,762 724,757 512,943 432,885
$ 2,520,911 $ 2,583,516 $ 2,528,915 $ 2,309,458 $ 1,853,862 $ 1,683,450 $ 1,547,301
35.6% 36.8% 35.7% 31.0% 29.8% 31.6% 24.5%
$ 246,267 $ 231,235 $ 200,270 $ 167,356 $ 164,577 $ 153,633 $ 146,253
$ 156,342 $ 206,564 $ 334,748 $ 230,482 $ 230,122 $ 236,945 $ 189,201
46,787 48,176 46,302 43,895 38,928 39,873 34,927
116,526 116,051 114,989 113,707 108,846 109,873 111,527
TOTAL ASSETS LONG-TERM DEBT SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Millians of Dallars Hillions of Dollors Millians of Dollars
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Boord of Directors and Shareholders
of Parker Honnifin Corporation:

In our opinion, the accompanying Consolidated Balonce Sheets and the related
Consolidated Statements of Income, Comprehensive Income and Cash Flows present
fairly, in oll material respects, the financial position of Parker Honnifin Corporation
and its subsidiaries {the “Company”} ot lune 30, 2007 and 2006, and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended June 30, 2007 in conformity with accounting principles generalty accepted

in the United States of Americo. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in

oll material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of June 30,
2007, based on aiteria established in Intemal Control - Integrated Fromewerk issued

by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgonizations of the Treadway Commission (C0S0).

The Company’s management is responsible for these financial statements, for main-
taining sffective internal contro! over fingncial reporting and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accom-
panying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our
responsitility is to express opinions on these financiol statements and on the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated qudits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board {United Stotes). Those standards require that we plan
and perform the eudits to obtain reasonable assurance obout whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement ond whether effective internal control
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our gudits of the
financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amaunts and disclosures in the financial statements, ussessing the occounting
principles used ond significant estimates made by management, ond evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal contral over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal cantrol over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effe¢tiveness of internal control based

on the assessed risk. Our audits olso included performing such other procedures

as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits pro-
vide o reasonable basis for aur apinions,

As discussed in Notes 1 and 12 fo the consolidated financial statements, the
Company changed the monner in which it accounts for share-based compensation
in fiscal 2006.

o

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is o process designed fo

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financiol reporting ond

the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordonce with
generally occepted accounting principles. & compony’s internal control over finandial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pestain to the maintenance
of records thot, in reasonable detoil, accurately ond fairly reflect the iransactions

and dispasitins of the assets of the company; (i) provide reesonable assurance that
transacfions are recorded as necessory to permit preparation of financiel statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and thot receipts ond
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with autherizations
of management and directors of the company; and (iit) provide reasonable assurance
regording prevention or timely detection of unauthorized ocquisition, use, or dispo-
sition of the company’s assets that could have o material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not
prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effective-
ness fo future periods are subject fo the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures moy deteriorate.

As described in Management’s Report on Intemnal Control Over Financial Reparting,
management hos excluded nine entities from its assessment of intemal control over
finonciol reporting as of lune 30, 2007 becouse they were acquired by the Compony
in purchase business combinatians during the year ended June 30, 2007. We have ©
olso excluded these nine entities from our oudit of internal control over financial re-
porting. The excluded entities are wholly-owned subsidiories whose total assets and
totol revenues represent 4.9% and 0.8%, respectively, of the reloted consolidated
financial statement amounts as of and for the yeor ended June 30, 2007.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Cleveland, Ohio
Rugust 16, 2007

L,
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Qur monagement is responsible for establishing and mointoining odequate internal contro! over finandial reporting (os defined in Exchange Act Rules 130-15(F) and 15d15¢f)).
Internal control over financiol reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the reliability of the Company’s financial reporting and the preparation of finncial
statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We assessed the effectiveness of our internal control aver financial reporting as of June 30, 2007. We have excluded nine entities from our evaluation of intemal control over

finoncial ceporting as of June 30, 2007 becouse the entities were ocguired in purchase business combinations during the year ended June 30, 2007. On a combined basis, the
entities represent approximately 4.9% of total assets and 0.8% of total revenues us of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. In making this assessment, we used the

criteria established by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgonizations of the Treadway Commission (C0S0) in “Internal ControHntegrated Framework.” We concluded that based

on our assessment, the Company’s internol control aver finonciol reporting was effective as of June 30, 2007.

P %/4445 T\C@J—Q

Donald E. Washkewicz Timothy K. Pistel
Chairman, Executive Vica President — Finance ond
Chief Exacutive Qfficer and President Administrotion and Chief Financiol Cficer

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Forward-ooking statements contained in this Annual Regort and other written reports and oral statements are made based on known events and circumstonces af the

time of release, and os such, are subject in the future to unforeseen uncertainties ond risks. All statements regarding future performance, earnings projections, events or
developments are forward-looking stetements. It is possible thot the Company’s future performance and earnings projections of the Company moy differ materiolly from
wrent expectations, depending on economic conditions within both its industrial and aerospace markets, and the Company’s ability to achieve anticipated benefits associated
with announced reolignment qctivities, strategic initictives to improve operating margins and growth and innovation inifiafives. A change in economic conditions in individual
markets may have a particularly volatile effect on segment performance. Amang other factors which may affect future performance are;

= Changes in business relationships with and purchases by or from mojor customers or suppliers, including deloys er cancellatians in shipments,
- or significant changes in financial condition,

» Uncertainties sumounding timing, successful completion or integrotion of ocquisitions,

« Threats associated with and efforts to combat terrorism,

+ (ompefitive market condifions and resulfing effects on soles and pricing,

» Increases in row material costs that cannot be recovered in product pricing,

» The Company's ability to manage costs related to insuronce ond employee retirement and health care benefits, and

» Global economic factors, including manufocturing activity, air trovel trends, curency exchange rotes,
difficulties entering new markets and generol economic conditions such as inflation, interest rates and credit avilability.

The Company undertakes no obligation to updote or publicly revise these forward-looking statements fo reflect events or circumstances that arise after the date of this
Annuol Report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman of the Board GIULIO MAZZALUP! 1,4
DONALD E. WASHKEWICZ Former President, Chief Executive Officer
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President and Director (Retired)
Parker Hannifin Corporatien Atlas Copco AB
Age: 57, Director since 2000 {industrial manufacturing}
Chairman since 2004 Age: 66, Director since 1999
. KLAUS-PETER MOLLER 3, 4
Directors Chairman of the Board of Managing Directors
LINDA 5. HARTY 1, 4 _ Commerzhank AG
Executive Vice President - Finance and (internctional banking)
Chief Financial Offices - Healthcare Supply Age: 63, Director since 1998
Chain Services
Cardinal Heglth, Inc. CANDY M. OBOURN 7,3 _
(healthcore products ond services) Chlgf Executive Officer and President
Age: 46, Director since 2007 Active Healthcare
{women’s healthcare products)
WILLIAM E. KASSLING 1,3 Age: 57, Director since 2002
Chaiman ofthe Bord JOSEPH M. SCAMINACE 2,3
gg:)\:;;s[ ?{;?{:;]{;“EEI industey} Chief Executive Officer, President, and Director
Age: 63, Director since 200) OM Group, Inc. ] ,
{metat-bosed specialty chemicals)
ROBERT J. KOHLHEPP 1.4 Age: 54, Director since 2004
Vice Choirman
Cintas Corporation
(unifarm rental)

Age: 63, Director since 2002

Parker Hannifin's Board of Directors {from | to r): Candy Obourn, Wolfgang Schmitt, William Kassling, Joseph Scaminace,
Klous-Peter Miller, Don Washkewicz, Giulio Mazzalupi, Robert Kohlhepp, Linda Harty, Markes Tambakeras

-+
,

WOLFGANG R. SCHMITT 1,2
Chief Executive Officer

Trends 2 Innovation

(strategic growth consultants)
Age: 63, Director since 1992

MARKOS |, TAMBAKERAS 2, 4

Former Chairman of the Board {refired)
Kennametal, Inc.

(global tooling salutions supplier)

Age: 57, Director since 2005

Committees of the Board

(1) AuDIT
(hairman: R. 1. Kehlhepp

(2) HUMAN RESOURCES
AND COMPENSATION
(hoirmaon: W. R. Schmitt
(3) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
AND NOMINATING
Chairman: W. E. Kessling

{4) FINANCE
Choirmon: K. P, Miller
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WITH APPRECIATION

The Board of Directors and Management of
Parker Honnifin gratefully acknowledge the
dedicoted service of three board members
who retired this year,

2 Y

DUANE £. cOLLINS, retired Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer, provided 45 years of
service fo Parker Ronnifin. He held 15 positions
of increasing responsibility of Porker Hannifin
starting out as a division sales engineer, ond
progressing to generol manager, group president,
president of the intemational sector, company
president and chief executive officer, and finally,
chairman of the board. Mr. Collins wos instr-
mentol in Porker Honnifin's global growth,
internal business group architecture, global IT
infrastructure, commitment fo customer service,
and the construction of new headquarters in the
U.S. ond the UK.

NICKOLAS W. VANDE STEEG, refired President and

Chief Operating Officer, served much of his 35-year

career within Parker Honnifin's seal business. As
the seal group president, Ms. Vande Steeg improved
the group’s sales by more than 600 percent over
15 years. As o corporate officer, Mr. Vande Steeg

enhanced Win Strategy execution and deployment,

improving company performance and operational
excellence worldwide et Parker Honnifin,

DR. PETER W. LIXINS, refired University of
Arizona Presidens, served on Parker Honnifin's
Board of Directors for 16 years. Dr. Likin
provided voluable counsel for Parker Hannifin

on manggement development and compensation
matters during a fime of importont succassion
planning.

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT

DONALD E. WASHKEWICZ
Chaiemon, Chief Executive Officer and President
hge: 57, Years of Parker service: 35

JOHN D. MYSLENSKI

Executive Vice President —

Sales, Marketing and

QOperations Suppors

Age: 56, Years of Parker service: 34

TIMOTHY K. PISTELL

Executive Vica President —

Finonce ond Administration

and Chief Financial Officer

Age: 60, Years of Parker service: 38

LEE C. BANKS
Sentor Vice President and Operating Officer
Age: 44, Yeors of Parker service: 15

ROBERT P. BARKER

Senior Vice President, Operating Officer
and President — Aerospoce Group

Age: 57, Years of Parker service: 34

THOMAS L. WILLIAMS
Senior Vice President and Operating Officer
Age: 48, Years of Porker service: 4

DANIEL S. SERBIN

Vice President -

Human Resousces

Age: 53, Years of Parker service: 27

ROBERT W. BOND

Vice President ond President —

Flut¢ Connectars Group

Age: 50, Years of Parker service: 30

SERFERY A. CULLMAN

Yice President and President —
Hydraulics Group

Aae: 49, Years of Parker service: 29

JOHN G. DEDINSKY, JR.

Vice President —

Globul Suppty Chain and Procurement
hge: 50, Years of Parker service; 28

DANA A, DENNIS
Vice President and Controller
Age: 59, Years of Porker service: 28

HEINZ DROXNER

Vice Prasident and President —

Seal Group

Age: 62, Years of Parker service: 34

WILLIAM G. ELINE

Vice President —

Chief Information Officer

Age: 51, Years of Parker service: 28

JOHN R. GRECO

Vice President ond President —
nstrumentation Group

Age: 53, Yeors of Parker service: 31

THOMAS F. HEALY

Vice Prasident and President —
(limate & Industrial Confrols Group
Age: 47, Years of Parker service: 24

WILLIAM R. HOELTING
Vice President — Tox
Age: 50, Years of Parker service: 16

PAMELA J. HUGGINS
Vice President ond Treasurer
Age: 53, Years of Parker service: 23

MARWAN M. KASHKOUSH

Vice President —

Worldwide Soles and Markefing
Age: 53, Years of Parker service: 29

A. RICARDO MACHADO

Yice President and President —
Lotin Americo Group

Age: 59, Years of Parker service: 14

M. CRAIG MAXWELL

Vice President —

Technotogy and Innovation

Age: 49, Years of Parker service: 11

JOHN K. OELSLAGER

Vice President ond President —
Filtration Group

Age: 64, Years of Parker service: 40

THOMAS A. PIRAINO, JR,

Vice President, General Counsel

and Secretary

Age: 58, Years of Parker service: 25

ROGER 5. SHERRARD

Vice President and President —
Automation Group

Age: 4, Yewrs of Parker service: 18

JOSEPH J. VICIC

Vice President and President —

Asio Padific Group

hge: 42, Yeors of Parker service: 40




CORPORATE INFORMATION

Ethical Conduct

Observing high ethical standords hos contributed to Parker Hannifin's reputation for
excellence. Parker Hannifin's Code of Ethics requires compliance with ol relevant

|ows, while acting with honesty, faimess and integrity. Parker Harnifin is committed

to meeting ifs ethical obfigations to customers and suppliers, fellow employees,
shareholders and the public.

Equal Opportunity

Parker Hannifin is on offirmative action/equal opportunity employer that extends
its commitment beyond equal opportunity and nondiscriminatory pracfices fo take
pasitive steps to crente an inclusive, and empowered employee enviranment.

itis the policy of Parker Hannifin to provide oll employees with a working environ-
ment free from all forms of discrimination and horossment. Further, Parker Hannifin
will not tolerake discrimination or harassment against any person for any reason,

Parker Honnifin's policy is to make oll employment decisions on the bosis of an
individual's job related qualfications, abilities, and performance — not on the basis
of personal characteristics unreloted to successful job performance.

Annual Meeting

The 2007 Annual Meefing of Shareholders will be held an Wednesday, October 24,
2007, ot Parker Hannifin Corporate Headquarters, 6035 Parkland Blvd., Clevelond,
Ohio 44124-4141, ot 9:00 o.m. Eastern Daylight Time. Telephone 216 896 2704.

Form 10-K

Shareholders may request o free copy of Parker Honnifin's Annual Report to the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 10-K by writing to the Secretary,
Parker Hannifin Corporation, 6035 Parklond Blvd., Ceveland, Ohio 44124-4141.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*

Among Parker Hannifin Corporation, The S&P 500 Index and The SEP Indusiriol Machinery Index
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{ertifications

Porker Honnifin hos induded as Exhibit 31 to its Annual Report on Form 10+K, o
amended, for fiscal yeor 2007 filed with the Securities ond Exchange Commission
certificates of its Chief Executive Officer ond Chief Financial Officer certifying the
quality of Parker Hannifin’s public disclosure. Parker Hannifin has also submitted to
the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) o certificate of its Chief Executive Officer
certifying thot he wos not aware of any violation by Parker Hannifin of NYSE
corporate governance listing standords os of the date of the certification.

Transfer Agent & Registrar

National City Bank

Department 5352, Shareholder Services Operations
P0. Box 92301

Clevelond, Ohio 44101-4301

Telephone 800 622 6757

shoreholder inquiries@nationolcity.com
www.nationalcity.com/shareholderservices

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

Parker Hannifin provides o Dividend Reinvestment Plan for its shoreholders. Under
the Plan, Porker Hannifin pays oll bank service charges and brokerage commissions,
Supplemental cash payments are also an option, For information, contact:

National City Bank

Shareholder Services Administration
PO. Box 94944

Cleveland, Ohio 44101-4944
Telephone 800 622 6757

shoreholder. inquiries@nationaleity.com
www.nationalcity.com/shareholderservices

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. Cleveland, Ohio, for fiscel year ended June 30, 2007
Deloitte & Touche, LLP, Cleveland, Qhio, for fiscol year ending June 30, 2008

%~ Porker Hannifin Corporation
= S&P500
~ 5&P Industrial Machinery
*S100 invested on 6,/30/02 in stock or index-including reinvestments of dividends. Fiseal yeer ending luza 30.

e
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PARKER MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE: Dan Serbin, Vice President - Human Resources;

Tom Williams, Senior Vice President and Operating Officer; Jack Myslenski, Executive Vice
President - Sales, Marketing and Operations Support; Don Washkewicz, Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Dfficer and President; Tim PisteH, Executive Vice President - Finance and
Administration and Chief Financial Officer; Lee Banks, Senior Vice Prasident and Opsrating Officer;
Bob Barker, Senior Vice President and Operating Officer and Aerospace Group President.
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GROUP PRESIDENTS & QFFICERS: Boh Bond, Fluid Conneciors; Jeft Cullman, Hydraulics;
Heinz Droxner, Seal; John Greco, Instrumentation; Tom Healy, Climate & Industrial Controls;
Ricardo Machado, Latin America; John Qelslager, Filtration; Roger Sherrard, Automation;
Joe Vicic, Asia Pacific.

A
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CORPORATE OFHCERS: John Dedinsky, Vice President - Globat Supply Chain & Procurement;
Dana Dennis, Vice President & Contreller; Bill Eline, Vice President - Chief Information Officer;
Bill Hoelting, Vice President - Tax; Pam Huggins, Vice President & Treasurer; Marwan Kashkoush,

Vice President - Worldwide Sales & Marketing; Craig Maxwell, Vice President - Technology & Innovation;

Tom Piraino, Vice President, General Counsel & Sacretary.

Parker Hannifin Corporation
6035 Parkland Boulevard
Cleveland, Ohio 44124-4141
216 896 3000

Product Information & Distributor Locations
North America:

1-B00-C-PARKER (1 800 272 7537)

Europe:

00800-C-PARKER-H {0800 2727 5374)

Stock Information
PH
NYSE.
New York Stock Exchange, ticker symbol; PH
On the Internet at; www.phstock.com

Worldwide Capabilities

Parker Hannifin is the warld's leading diversified
manufacturer of motion and control technologies
and systems. The company's engineering expertise
spans the core motion technologies - electrome-
chanical, hydraulic and pneumatic - with a fuil
complement of fluid handling, filtration, sealing
and shielding, climate control, process control
and aerospace technologies. The company part-
ners with its customers to increase their
productivity and profitahitity.

See our capabilities online at: www.parker.com

Investor Contact

Pamela J. Huggins, Vice President & Treasurer
216 896 2240

phuggins@parker.com

Media Contact

Christopher M. Farage, Vice President -
Corporate Communications

216 896 2750

cfarage@parker.com

Career Opportunities
Search for job openings and apply online at:
www.parker.com/careers




Parker Hannifin Corporation
6035 Parkland Boulevard
Cleveland, Ohio 44124-4143
216 896 3000

0
ENGINEERING YOUR SUCCESS.




